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The Honorable Tina Rose Muña Barnes 
Speaker 
I Mina’trentai Singko na Liheslaturan Guåhan 
163 Chalan Santo Papa 
Hagåtña, Guam 96910 

VIA: The Honorable Régine Biscoe Lee 
Chairperson, Committee on Rules 

Subject: Committee Report on Virtual Informational Briefing on Guam Department of 
Labor - Federal Unemployment Programs 

Dear Speaker Muña Barnes, 

Buenas yan Håfa adai! Transmitted herewith is the Committee Report on the Virtual 
Informational Briefing with Guam Department of Labor - Federal Unemployment Programs. 

Respectfully, 

Senator Régine Biscoe Lee 
Chairperson 

COMMITTEE ON RULES RECEIVED: 
JULY 8, 2020 @10:03 A.M. 

mailto:senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org


COMMITTEE REPORT 

Virtual Informational Briefing 

Guam Department of Labor 
Federal Unemployment Programs 

• Status of Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) program;

• Status of Federal Pandemic Unemployment Compensation (FPUC)
program;

• Timeline of actions in establishing federal aid programs; and

• Summary of proposed implementation strategies for acquisition of
Guam employment data for federal aid.

By Senator Régine Biscoe Lee 

mailto:senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org


Régine Biscoe Lee <senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org>

FIRST NOTICE OF VIRTUAL INFORMATIONAL BRIEFING — Monday, May 11, 2020
at 9:00 a.m.
2 messages

Régine Biscoe Lee <senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org> Mon, May 4, 2020 at 2:39 PM
To: Régine Biscoe Lee <senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org>
Cc: David Dellisola <david.dellisola@dol.guam.gov>, Gerard Toves <gerard.toves@dol.guam.gov>,
hannah.iriarte@dol.guam.gov
Bcc: PH Notice <phnotice@guamlegislature.org>, "Christian F. Valencia" <cfvalencia@guamlegislature.org>, Jean
Cordero <jean@guamlegislature.org>, Jenelle Aguilar <jaguilar.senatorlee@gmail.com>, Kiana Yabut
<kyabut.senatorlee@gmail.com>, Michelle Mafnas <mmafnas.senatorlee@gmail.com>, Orleen Villasoto
<orleen.villasoto@guamlegislature.org>, Phill Leon Guerrero <phill.senatorlee@gmail.com>, Senator Régine Biscoe Lee
<senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org>, news@sorensenmediagroup.com, Chris Barnett <chris@kuam.com>, Chris
Malafunkshun Barnett <malafunkshun@kuam.com>, "Dana M. Williams" <dmwilliams@guam.gannett.com>, "Dana M.
Williams" <dmwilliams@guampdn.com>, "Eugenio, Haidee" <haidee@postguam.com>, "George, Duane M"
<dmgeorge@guam.gannett.com>, John O'Connor <john@postguam.com>, Kandit News Group
<news@kanditnews.com>, Kevin <kevin@spbguam.com>, KUAM News Reporters <reporters@kuam.com>, Nick
Delgado <nick@postguam.com>, Pacific Island Times <pacificislandtimes@gmail.com>, Patti Arroyo
<parroyo@k57.com>, The Post Editor in Chief <editor@postguam.com>, Troy Torres <troy@kanditnews.com>

Buenas yan Håfa adai:

Please find attached and copied below a notice from the Office of Senator Régine Biscoe Lee regarding a Virtual
Informational Briefing on Monday, May 11, 2020.

Thank you for your attention to this matter. Si Yu'os Ma'åse'!

Respectfully,

Christian F. Valencia
Committee Director

Office of the People ● Senator Régine Biscoe Lee
Committee on Federal and Foreign Affairs, 
Telecommunications, Technology and Labor

35th Guam Legislature
I Mina’trentai Singko na Liheslaturan Guåhan

Tel: (671) 472-3455
Email address: cfvalencia@guamlegislature.org

---
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

MEMORANDUM

To: All Senators, Stakeholders, Media

From: Senator Régine Biscoe Lee
Chairperson, Committee on Federal and Foreign Affairs,
Telecommunications, Technology, and Labor

Subject: First No ce of Virtual Informa onal Briefing  ‐ Monday, May 11, 2020 at 9:00 a.m.

Buenas yan Håfa adai! Please be advised that the Commi ee on Federal and Foreign Affairs, Telecommunica ons,
Technology, and Labor (“Commi ee”) will convene a Virtual Informa onal Briefing on Monday, May 11, 2020, via
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Zoom Conference pla orm on the following:

Guam Department of Labor
ꞏ Status of Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) program;

ꞏ Status of Federal Pandemic Unemployment Compensa on (FPUC) program;

ꞏ Timeline of ac ons in establishing federal aid programs; and

ꞏ Summary of proposed implementa on strategies for acquisi on of Guam employment
data for federal aid.

The Virtual Informa onal Briefing will broadcast on local television, GTA Channel 21, Docomo Channel 117/60.4 and
stream online via I Liheslaturan Guåhan’s live feed.  Individuals wishing to par cipate in the Virtual Informa onal
Briefing to provide tes mony may contact the Office of Senator Régine Biscoe Lee via email at senatorbiscoelee@
guamlegislature.org or 472‐3455 no later than May 8, 2020, for further guidance.

If wri en tes monies are to be presented at the Virtual Informa onal Briefing, the Commi ee requests that copies
be submi ed prior to the public hearing date and should be addressed to Senator Régine Biscoe Lee, Chair of the
Commi ee. Tes monies may be submi ed via drop‐box to the Office of Senator Régine Biscoe Lee at 163 Chalan
Santo Papa, Hagåtña, Guam 96910 or via email to senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org.

Individuals requiring special accommoda ons, auxiliary aids, or services may contact and submit their request to
Mr. Chris an Valencia at the Office of Senator Biscoe Lee at 163 Chalan Santo Papa, Hagåtña, GU 96910, by phone
at 472‐3455, or by email at senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org. 

We look forward to your a endance and par cipa on. Si Yu’os Ma’åse’!

05.04.2020_PH Notice 1 - GDOL Info Briefing.pdf
201K

Tom Unsiog <sgtarms@guamlegislature.org> Mon, May 4, 2020 at 6:28 PM
To: Régine Biscoe Lee <senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org>

Notice is now placed on the legislature's website calendar...tom 
[Quoted text hidden]

--

Sergeant at Arms

35th Guam Legislature
I Mina’trentai Singko na Liheslaturan Guåhan

Tel: (671) 969-3514
Email: sgtarms@guamlegislature.org

"Disclaimer: This message is intended only for the use of the individual or entity to which it is addressed and may contain
information which is privileged, confidential, proprietary, or exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not the
intended recipient or the individual responsible for delivering the message to the intended recipient, you are strictly prohibited
from disclosing, distributing, copying, or in any way using this message. If you have received this communication in error,
please notify the sender and immediately delete any copies you may have received. Thank you."
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COMMITTEE ON FEDERAL AND FOREIGN AFFAIRS,  
TELECOMMUNICATIONS, TECHNOLOGY AND LABOR 

I MINAʹTRENTAI SINGKO NA LIHESLATURAN GUÅHAN 
35TH GUAM LEGISLATURE 

Senator Régine Biscoe Lee May 4, 2020 
Chairperson 

GUAM CONGRESS BUILDING | 163 CHALAN SANTO PAPA | HAGÅTÑA, GUAM 96910 
senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org | (671) 472-3455  

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 

MEMORANDUM 

To: All Senators, Stakeholders, Media 

From: Senator Régine Biscoe Lee 

Chairperson, Committee on Federal and Foreign Affairs, 

Telecommunications, Technology, and Labor 

Subject: First Notice of Virtual Informational Briefing - Monday, May 11, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. 

Buenas yan Håfa adai! Please be advised that the Committee on Federal and Foreign Affairs, 

Telecommunications, Technology, and Labor (“Committee”) will convene a Virtual Informational Briefing 

on Monday, May 11, 2020, via Zoom Conference platform on the following: 

Guam Department of Labor 

• Status of Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) program;

• Status of Federal Pandemic Unemployment Compensation (FPUC) program;

• Timeline of actions in establishing federal aid programs; and

• Summary of proposed implementation strategies for acquisition of Guam

employment data for federal aid.

The Virtual Informational Briefing will broadcast on local television, GTA Channel 21, Docomo Channel 

117/60.4 and stream online via I Liheslaturan Guåhan’s live feed.  Individuals wishing to participate in the 

Virtual Informational Briefing to provide testimony may contact the Office of Senator Régine Biscoe Lee 

via email at senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org or 472-3455 no later than May 8, 2020, for further 

guidance. 

If written testimonies are to be presented at the Virtual Informational Briefing, the Committee requests 

that copies be submitted prior to the public hearing date and should be addressed to Senator Régine 

Biscoe Lee, Chair of the Committee. Testimonies may be submitted via drop-box to the Office of Senator 

Régine Biscoe Lee at 163 Chalan Santo Papa, Hagåtña, Guam 96910 or via email to 

senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org.  

Individuals requiring special accommodations, auxiliary aids, or services may contact and submit their 

request to Mr. Christian Valencia at the Office of Senator Biscoe Lee at 163 Chalan Santo Papa, Hagåtña, 

GU 96910, by phone at 472-3455, or by email at senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org.   

We look forward to your attendance and participation. Si Yu’os Ma’åse’! 

mailto:senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCWGC3ELFeriK7HtSuf70tyg/live
mailto:senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org
mailto:senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org
mailto:senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org


Régine Biscoe Lee <senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org>

SECOND NOTICE OF VIRTUAL INFORMATIONAL BRIEFING — Monday, May 11,
2020 at 9:00 a.m.
2 messages

Régine Biscoe Lee <senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org> Wed, May 6, 2020 at 5:00 PM
To: Régine Biscoe Lee <senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org>
Cc: David Dellisola <david.dellisola@dol.guam.gov>, Gerard Toves <gerard.toves@dol.guam.gov>,
hannah.iriarte@dol.guam.gov
Bcc: PH Notice <phnotice@guamlegislature.org>, "Christian F. Valencia" <cfvalencia@guamlegislature.org>, Jean
Cordero <jean@guamlegislature.org>, Jenelle Aguilar <jaguilar.senatorlee@gmail.com>, Kiana Yabut
<kyabut.senatorlee@gmail.com>, Michelle Mafnas <mmafnas.senatorlee@gmail.com>, Orleen Villasoto
<orleen.villasoto@guamlegislature.org>, Phill Leon Guerrero <phill.senatorlee@gmail.com>, Senator Régine Biscoe Lee
<senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org>, news@sorensenmediagroup.com, Chris Barnett <chris@kuam.com>, Chris
Malafunkshun Barnett <malafunkshun@kuam.com>, "Dana M. Williams" <dmwilliams@guam.gannett.com>, "Dana M.
Williams" <dmwilliams@guampdn.com>, "Eugenio, Haidee" <haidee@postguam.com>, "George, Duane M"
<dmgeorge@guam.gannett.com>, John O'Connor <john@postguam.com>, Kandit News Group
<news@kanditnews.com>, Kevin <kevin@spbguam.com>, KUAM News Reporters <reporters@kuam.com>, Nick
Delgado <nick@postguam.com>, Pacific Island Times <pacificislandtimes@gmail.com>, Patti Arroyo
<parroyo@k57.com>, The Post Editor in Chief <editor@postguam.com>, Troy Torres <troy@kanditnews.com>

Buenas yan Håfa adai:

Please find attached and copied below a notice from the Office of Senator Régine Biscoe Lee regarding a Virtual
Informational Briefing on Monday, May 11, 2020.

Thank you for your attention to this matter. Si Yu'os Ma'åse'!

Respectfully,

Christian F. Valencia
Committee Director

Office of the People ● Senator Régine Biscoe Lee
Committee on Federal and Foreign Affairs, 
Telecommunications, Technology and Labor

35th Guam Legislature
I Mina’trentai Singko na Liheslaturan Guåhan

Tel: (671) 472-3455
Email address: cfvalencia@guamlegislature.org

---
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

MEMORANDUM

To: All Senators, Stakeholders, Media 

From: Senator Régine Biscoe Lee
Chairperson, Committee on Federal and Foreign Affairs,
Telecommunications, Technology, and Labor

Subject: Second No ce of Virtual Informa onal Briefing  ‐ Monday, May 11, 2020 at 9:00 a.m.

Buenas yan Håfa adai! Please be advised that the Commi ee on Federal and Foreign Affairs, Telecommunica ons,
Technology,  and   Labor   (“Commi ee”)  will   convene  a  Public  Hearing  on  Monday,  May  11,  2020, via   Zoom
Conference pla orm on the following:
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Guam Department of Labor
ꞏ Status of Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) program;

ꞏ Status of Federal Pandemic Unemployment Compensa on (FPUC) program;

ꞏ Timeline of ac ons in establishing federal aid programs; and

ꞏ Summary of proposed implementa on strategies for acquisi on of Guam employment
data for federal aid.

The Virtual Informa onal Briefing will broadcast on local television, GTA Channel 21, Docomo Channel 117/60.4 and
stream online via I Liheslaturan Guåhan’s live feed.  Individuals wishing to par cipate in the Virtual Informa onal
Briefing to provide tes mony may contact the Office of Senator Régine Biscoe Lee via email at senatorbiscoelee@
guamlegislature.org or 472‐3455 no later than May 8, 2020, for further guidance.

If wri en tes monies are to be presented at the Virtual Informa onal Briefing, the Commi ee requests that copies
be submi ed prior to the public hearing date and should be addressed to Senator Régine Biscoe Lee, Chair of the
Commi ee. Tes monies may be submi ed via drop‐box to the Office of Senator Régine Biscoe Lee at 163 Chalan
Santo Papa, Hagåtña, Guam 96910 or via email to senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org.

Individuals requiring special accommoda ons, auxiliary aids, or services may contact and submit their request to
Mr. Chris an Valencia at the Office of Senator Biscoe Lee at 163 Chalan Santo Papa, Hagåtña, GU 96910, by phone
at 472‐3455, or by email at senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org. 

We look forward to your a endance and par cipa on. Si Yu’os Ma’åse’!

05.06.2020_PH Notice 2 - GDOL Info Briefing.pdf
201K

Senator William Mendiola Castro <sen.wilcastro@gmail.com> Thu, May 7, 2020 at 5:00 PM
To: Régine Biscoe Lee <senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org>

Please confirm Sen. Castro.

Thank you.

[Quoted text hidden]

[Quoted text hidden]

--
To unsubscribe from this group and stop receiving emails from it, send an email to phnotice+unsubscribe@
guamlegislature.org.
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COMMITTEE ON FEDERAL AND FOREIGN AFFAIRS,  
TELECOMMUNICATIONS, TECHNOLOGY AND LABOR 

I MINAʹTRENTAI SINGKO NA LIHESLATURAN GUÅHAN 
35TH GUAM LEGISLATURE 

Senator Régine Biscoe Lee May 6, 2020 
Chairperson 

GUAM CONGRESS BUILDING | 163 CHALAN SANTO PAPA | HAGÅTÑA, GUAM 96910 
senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org | (671) 472-3455  

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 

MEMORANDUM 

To: All Senators, Stakeholders, Media 

From: Senator Régine Biscoe Lee 

Chairperson, Committee on Federal and Foreign Affairs, 

Telecommunications, Technology, and Labor 

Subject: Second Notice of Virtual Informational Briefing - Monday, May 11, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. 

Buenas yan Håfa adai! Please be advised that the Committee on Federal and Foreign Affairs, 

Telecommunications, Technology, and Labor (“Committee”) will convene a Public Hearing on Monday, 

May 11, 2020, via Zoom Conference platform on the following: 

Guam Department of Labor 

• Status of Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) program;

• Status of Federal Pandemic Unemployment Compensation (FPUC) program;

• Timeline of actions in establishing federal aid programs; and

• Summary of proposed implementation strategies for acquisition of Guam

employment data for federal aid.

The Virtual Informational Briefing will broadcast on local television, GTA Channel 21, Docomo Channel 

117/60.4 and stream online via I Liheslaturan Guåhan’s live feed.  Individuals wishing to participate in the 

Virtual Informational Briefing to provide testimony may contact the Office of Senator Régine Biscoe Lee 

via email at senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org or 472-3455 no later than May 8, 2020, for further 

guidance. 

If written testimonies are to be presented at the Virtual Informational Briefing, the Committee requests 

that copies be submitted prior to the public hearing date and should be addressed to Senator Régine 

Biscoe Lee, Chair of the Committee. Testimonies may be submitted via drop-box to the Office of Senator 

Régine Biscoe Lee at 163 Chalan Santo Papa, Hagåtña, Guam 96910 or via email to 

senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org.  

Individuals requiring special accommodations, auxiliary aids, or services may contact and submit their 

request to Mr. Christian Valencia at the Office of Senator Biscoe Lee at 163 Chalan Santo Papa, Hagåtña, 

GU 96910, by phone at 472-3455, or by email at senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org.   

We look forward to your attendance and participation. Si Yu’os Ma’åse’! 

mailto:senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCWGC3ELFeriK7HtSuf70tyg/live
mailto:senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org
mailto:senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org
mailto:senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org


COMMITTEE ON FEDERAL AND FOREIGN AFFAIRS,  
TELECOMMUNICATIONS, TECHNOLOGY AND LABOR 

I MINAʹTRENTAI SINGKO NA LIHESLATURAN GUÅHAN 
35TH GUAM LEGISLATURE 

Senator Régine Biscoe Lee May 11, 2020 
Chairperson 

GUAM CONGRESS BUILDING | 163 CHALAN SANTO PAPA | HAGÅTÑA, GUAM 96910 
senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org | (671) 472-3455  

Virtual Informational Briefing 

AGENDA 
Monday, May 11, 2020  

at 9:00 a.m. 
Via Zoom Conference Platform 

I. Call to Order 

II. Opening Remarks/Housekeeping

III. Introduction of Stakeholders

IV. Presentation by the Guam Department of Labor

• Status of Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) program;

• Status of Federal Pandemic Unemployment Compensation (FPUC) program;

• Timeline of actions in establishing federal aid programs; and

• Summary of proposed implementation strategies for acquisition of Guam

employment data for federal aid.

V. Discussion 

VI. Closing Remarks/Announcements

VII. Adjournment

mailto:senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org


VIRTUAL INFORMATIONAL BRIEFING 
GUAM DEPARTMENT OF LABOR  

• Status of Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) program;

• Status of Federal Pandemic Unemployment Compensation (FPUC) program;

• Timeline of actions in establishing federal aid programs; and

• Summary of proposed implementation strategies for acquisition of Guam employment data for federal aid.

Monday, May 11, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. 
Via Zoom Conference platform 

SIGN-IN SHEET

NAME 
AGENCY OR ORGANIZATION 
(IF ANY) 

Please indicate with ✓ 

Contact Number Email Address Written Oral 

David Dell’Isola Guam Department of Labor ___ ✓ (671) 300-4600 david.dellisola@dol.guam.gov 

Hannah Cho Guam Department of Labor ___ ✓ (671) 300-4600 hannah.cho@dol.guam.gov 

___ ___ 
___ ___ 

___ ___ 

Page 1 of 1 
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COMMITTEE REPORT DIGEST 

I. OVERVIEW 

The Committee on Federal and Foreign Affairs, Telecommunications, Technology, and Labor 
convened a Virtual Informational Briefing on Monday, May 11, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. via Zoom 
Conference platform to discuss updates from the Guam Department of Labor on federal 
unemployment programs. 

Public Notice Requirements 
Public Hearing notices were disseminated via electronic mail to all Senators and all main 
media broadcasting outlets on May 4, 2020 (Five-day Notice), and again on May 6, 2020 
(48-Hour Notice). In addition, the Public Hearing was noticed on the Guam Legislature 
website at www.guamlegislature.org. 

Senators Present 
Senator Régine Biscoe Lee, Chairperson 
Senator Kelly Marsh (Taitano), Committee Member 
Senator Sabina Flores Perez, Committee Member 
Senator Amanda L. Shelton, Committee Member 
Senator Telo T. Taitague, Committee Member 
Senator Mary Camacho Torres, Committee Member 
Speaker Tina Rose Muña Barnes 
Vice Speaker Telena Cruz Nelson 
Senator Jose “Pedo” Terlaje 
Senator Louise B. Muña 
Senator James C. Moylan 
Senator William M. Castro 

Individuals Who Testified Before I Liheslaturan Guåhan 

Mr. David Dell’Isola Director, Guam Department of Labor (GDOL) 
Ms. Hannah Cho Special Projects Coordinator, GDOL 

mailto:senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org


SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY AND DISCUSSION 

The first session of the Public Hearing was Called-to-Order at 2:07 p.m. 

Chairperson Régine Biscoe Lee: 

Buenas yan Håfa adai todus hamyo! This Virtual Informational Briefing by the Committee 
on Federal and Foreign Affairs, Telecommunications, Technology and Labor is hereby 
called to order. It is now 9:01 am. For the record and in accordance with Section 8107 of 
Chapter 8, 5 GCA, public hearing notices were sent on Monday, May 4, 2020, adhering to 
the five (5) working day notice and a second public notice on Wednesday, May 6, 2020, 
forty-eight (48) hours prior. In addition, this Virtual Informational Briefing was noticed on 
the Guam Daily Post on Sunday, May 10, 2020, and the Guam Legislature website at 
www.guamlegislature.org.   

Joining me here this morning, in no particular order, Senator Mary Torres, Senator Louise 
Muña, Senator Kelly Marsh (Taitano), Senator “Pedo” Terlaje, Senator William Castro, 
Senator Jim Moylan, Legislative Secretary Senator Amanda Shelton, Minority Leader 
Senator Telo Taitague, and colleagues may be joining during the hearing. Thank you very 
much, Senators, for joining me.  

Before we proceed with the discussion of items on our Virtual Informational Briefing 
agenda, I would first like to provide some General Rules of Conduct for all who are in 
attendance. The conduct of this hearing shall be as follows: 

• All participants must abide by all rules of conduct and quality assurance
standards, including broadcasting from a quiet room with little to no
interruptions; broadcasting from a room with adequate lighting—specifically to
ensure the participant's face is visible and not backlit; and ensuring that the
participant’s face is visible at all times.

• When speaking, please ensure that you are “un-muted” and that you are
speaking into your microphone.

• The Chair will invite individuals who have signed up to testify.

• Individuals testifying shall first be recognized by the Chair before speaking and
shall state their name for record purposes.

• The order of questioning will begin with the panel of Senators, who shall
complete their lines of questioning for each respective item on the agenda.

• Each member will be allowed to pose a question to an individual testifying for a
round and will be provided another round, if needed.

• Questions and testimony shall be confined to the substance or nature of the
agenda.  Personal inference as to the character or the motive of any Senator, or
any individual testifying, is NOT permitted. Any violations of this general rule of
conduct will result in removal from the Meeting Room.

mailto:senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org
http://www.guamlegislature.org/
http://www.guamlegislature.org/


Håfa Adai everyone. I have called for this virtual informational briefing to provide our 
people with updates regarding the status of unemployment programs established under 
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act. I have called on the 
Department of Labor to provide the Guam Legislature with information on the Pandemic 
Unemployment Assistance (PUA) and Federal Pandemic Unemployment Compensation 
(FPUC) programs. 

As Chair of this Committee, I hope to work with our partners at the Department of Labor 
to fully understand the intricacies of these federal relief programs and will continue to 
provide the Department with the support that they need to accomplish their goals for 
speedy implementation. 

At this time, I would like to call the panel of individuals who have signed up to testify. And 
I would also like to welcome Senator Joe San Agustin who has joined us. Welcome, 
Senator. I would like to acknowledge the Director of the Guam Department of Labor, I 
know that he’s very busy and that he has some other obligations with USDOL and other 
important meetings that he has to attend to today. So, I appreciate him for joining us 
even for just a few minutes. Director Dave Dell'Isola is on with us as well as Hannah Cho 
the Special Projects Coordinator from the Guam Department of Labor. Welcome Lady 
and Gentleman. Mr. Dell’Isola, at this time, I’d like to give you the floor to just make 
some introductory remarks.  

Mr. Daivd Dell'Isola, Director, Guam Department of Labor (GDOL): 

Thank you for inviting me, originally Hannah was going to make this whole presentation, 
but I’m trying to carve out a small piece of my day this morning because you know this 
weekend, I’m sure you heard that we were awarded $276 million dollars. To summarize 
it, the US Department of Labor accepted our budget. They had some conditions and this 
had to do with the implementation plan that they were very impressed with our first 
draft. Four or five days ago, when I talked to USDOL and I said that I needed to speak to 
Washington to get this money coming in. That the Governor is putting timelines on this 
island and they want the money now, we need to start helping the people. She was very 
apathetic that I get on them and get some results. At her assistance, I was able to deliver 
those results. In the meetings, they agreed to step-up the process. We were able to do 
three or four things on Saturday morning’s meeting all at one time and they agreed to 
send us the money this week.  

So, they appreciated all that we’ve done and the way that we were standing up and for 
acknowledging and getting them the information as quickly as possible. So I’m so happy 
with that. 

It’s Sunday there, so that allows me a little bit of time because usually in this time of the 
morning, I’m with USDOL. What I am with is the software vendor this morning, they’re 
private vendor so they work every day. After I get off of this I’m back to the working 
model of the software. This is the most important part of this whole program. Like all the 
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other states, only a handful of states have implemented PUA. A lot of states are having a 
lot of problems, more so on their scale than Guam is.  

We are quite lucky to get the vendor that so happened to be our HireGuam vendor. 
They’ve done this UI PUA program in seven states, so this huge program that they 
brought to the table is what we’re whittling down. We're getting out all the UI stuff we're 
getting out all the stuff that is the fat and a lot of detail. It is going to be a complicated 
application process because it because it's a federal program. They just can't remove that 
part, the language and the interface it's like the same as applying for UI in the States, it’s 
just designed for PUA, but the elements are very similar.  

So, we are trying to develop help boxes to explain what each item is. We're trying to vet 
it out, whittle it down and as they’re making changes, we're going back and seeing how 
these things are going. I do want to let you know, exactly how long it is going to take it's 
hard to say because this is the most important part that we have program integrity and 
that it is not the best as possible, but as adequate as possible.  

As I stated before, the vendor said this is a 12 to 18-month process normally and we're 
doing it in a month and a half. So what you're going to get is a program, hopefully, that is 
adequate, that meets our needs, and it's going to be customized as good as possible 
because every time I have to, they have to reprogram an element and- that takes time 
and time is not on our side. As I told you as DOL this is a double-edged sword that I'm 
asking you, because right now a lot of the holdup is coming from USDOL and every time 
they give me something, I catch up. They give me something more, I've caught up.  

Now, I said if you give me the money there's nobody else to blame, but I want that 
money now. I want to get the money, I want the people to see that they are responding 
to us, but you have to understand I have so many parallel programs going on. They are 
still training us. This week I have us deal while training on the PUA program, who are 
learning that whole program and how it works and the complication of the adjudication 
process is the important process that we're still trying to stand up. There are several 
layers, you can just imagine, you have self-employed and you have an employee. Just last 
week for the first time, they threw in the earnings disregard. If you haven't seen that PSA, 
that's another complication in this process. So, I'm going to have thousands of 
applications that are at reduced hours that I need to calculate. Do they qualify? If they do 
qualify, how to reduced amount and I have to get that done. That's on thousands and 
thousands and people are waiting for their money.  

So, the ones that are going to be clean and they're going to come in, that's going to be 
easy to process. The software can self-adjudicate those clean applications. I'm still 
working on a vendor, we're still working on bids, we're still trying to get materials in. It's 
all happening at the same time and I am trying my best - it's only a month and a half that 
I've been doing this and the huge amount... this is the most complicated thing that I've 
ever done in my whole life. And thank God, as they call me the disaster director because 
last time I was a director I had Pongsona, Chata’an, 8.2 earthquakes, the Korean air 
crash, Paka - I've had all this and it seems like and then I come in again and Dengue and 
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then this comes at me, so I got this but you've got to understand the complication. This is 
a complicated program that I'm standing up and I'm doing my best working in parallel 
paths standing up. So, I'm getting DOL training, I'm gaining software training, I'm doing 
procurements, I'm doing an implementation plan. I got a five-year stay plan that's gonna 
that's on public notice. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Right and I wanted to give you an opportunity to invite the public to comment on that, I 
believe that's available on your website? 

Mr. Dell'Isola: 

Yes. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Okay. 

Mr. Dell'Isola: 

I did take yesterday off for Mother's Day because I'm not going to see that for a long time 
and I'm going to continue to work hard non-stop 14 to 16 hours a day, when I go home 
I'm on my email. It's non-stop and I am trying to keep people informed as good as 
possible. I had four FOIAs and that's taking time - I think I responded to most of them if 
not all of them. If you need anything ask me. Everything I'm doing is transparent if you 
don't know what I'm doing is because it's happening in real time and everything that's 
going on is happening in real-time. From designing the program, to getting trained on 
PUA from USDOL, to putting together the implementation plan, they're getting the 
money, to doing the procurement to stand up this program, the standing up the 
processing center, the standing up interpreters. There are so many pieces - some of this I 
can't tell you because if I tell you then there'll be a flood of people going there. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Well, Director Dell’Isola, I certainly appreciate all of the work that you have done, all the 
work that your team has done. I know that there's a lot of things going on behind the 
scenes, but I think that's another reason why this hearing is so important, so we have an 
opportunity to share some of the good news, but also some of the challenges that DOL is 
having. Getting this program stood up, working on the software, training our people, and 
then also getting the word out, right to all of the people who will be eligible for this 
program. 

I did see the video on the earnings disregard which I thought was excellent. I got a lot of 
good feedback on that video over the weekend and we'll be showing that also later 
during our hearing, but I did want to just give you an opportunity to kind of give us an 
opening and then maybe if Miss Cho would like to give her introduction too and then we 
can go for a round of questions by the Senators, I understand that you have to leave 
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Director Dell'Isola in a few minutes because you're jumping on another call with a 
software vendor, so I just wanted to give you an opportunity to just make that 
introduction. 

Mr. Dell'Isola: 

I hope you don't feel offended. The pressure to get the money out there is just double 
down with the money coming in and I have to put all hands on deck in getting that, that's 
my focus, is getting that software up so that we can get this program up and running, get 
the processing center up and running, get this pre-application up and running and then 
trying to get the information out as those PSAs and getting all those stand up. So know 
that there's so many things going on and I wanted to take a half-hour from my day to 
come to you guys just to show that I understand. The day’s perfect because normally I 
wouldn't have this time, but it's Sunday so USDOL is not expecting my phone calls and I 
can- because mornings are all with USDOL and software. I mean that's because that's US 
time and… 

Chairperson Lee: 

If there's one thing- before you hop off if there's one thing that you'd like to relay to the 
people of Guam in terms of how they can get prepared if they are eligible for these 
programs. What's one thing that you really want to impress upon them in their 
preparations? What's the best thing that they can do to get prepared for once the 
application is ready? 

Mr. Dell'Isola: 

This is not only for the one thing but also for you for the whole island, for all our people, 
this application process is an online application process. That's the way it's being done 
nationwide, so with that in mind, once you- you have computers, scanners, reach out 
whether if you're at home and one of your family members, businesses, hotels. I'm telling 
them all to stand up many processing centers. Help your employees apply. Get your HR 
people, get your educated people understanding how to do an online application. Once 
you do it one time you've got an understanding. You can reach out get somebody sitting 
down help them apply. Then that person can go out to another computer, reach out to 
another two people, sit them down and get them to apply and just keep reaching out like 
this virus and just get people to go online help them submit their documents so the call-
out is to tell everybody get your documents electronically ready. Get them in PDF, 
whatever it is so that they can be uploaded. So that when the application process comes 
up- my processing center is no different than you going online. They're going to log 
online, they're going to sit down with you and fill out that application online.  

You can do it online with your iPad, with your iPhone, with your computer just as easy. So 
once- you know I'm telling the families out there, once you get those Millennials to get 
them online and then once they are successful get your mom, your grandmother, your 
cousins get them in and get them online and get their applications in and get your 
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businesses get your employees. No better way can you take care of your employees by 
helping them out and sitting them down and getting them done online.  

Hotels and businesses stand up those empty ballrooms get your HR people in, get every 
one of those employees in by appointment, get them online, get them done. You want to 
help them even more? Help their families get online because this is an online application 
basis and once you've done an online application successfully that software will be 
adjudicated and those clean applications can then be moved down the line and be ready 
for check writing or EFT's electronic funds’ transfer. That will happen- that's the fastest 
way. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Okay, great. 

Mr. Dell'Isola: 

Because remember, I am gonna have like 40,000 applicate applicants, if I have a hundred 
people taking applications and it takes 40 minutes to a half hour to sit down, it'll take 
months to see everybody. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Right. 

Mr. Dell'Isola: 

As an island, we need to reach out to your friends and to your families and every one of 
us reach out and help everybody get an online application submitted successfully. That's 
the best way we're going to get this done as quickly as possible. Senators, if you want to 
take people online- everybody, I can't stress it enough. That's how everybody in this 
island can help each other is they reach out and take care of your families, just take care 
of your all your staff. Take care of your families get them in there and sit down and get 
them a half-hour each for the uploaded documents and get their application.  

If we all do this and reach out successfully, we can get this in a timely fashion and then 
we can start doing the work of looking at those who need adjudication. Those who need 
a second look because on the application process there is a self-certification process 
where you certify that the information by perjury and federal law is true and correct so I 
understand there's a lot of people who can't get their employers to give them that letter 
because they're closed. So if you can't get it in now, get your application in and self-
certify. You will be required in the subsequent months to do it.  

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you so much Mr. Director and then I just wanted to turn it over to Hannah so she 
can begin her presentation and I know that we had some PDFs that were submitted, all 
the Senators had the opportunity to look over these documents, and then also the video. 
So, I just wanted to turn it over to Hannah at this moment. 

Mr. Dell'Isola: 
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Yes, Hannah will be glad. You can send her all the questions, I will be glad to take some 
time and make sure that the answers are done and sent out to you. So I leave you in 
capable hands. I just wanted to Thank you all you senators for allowing me to jump on 
and please understand and that I can't stay on for a long period of time so I can move this 
program forward and submit your questions to her and if you have any questions she can 
hopefully be able to answer them. Si Yu’os Ma’ase’ for everybody and pray for us to get 
this up and running as quickly as possible. And I asked for your support in just getting us 
the time to do this. Please, I beg your understanding and I want to Thank you Senator 
Régine for allowing me to jump on and your understanding that I can't stay for hours to 
answer everybody's questions like I wish I had the time to do. You all know me, you know 
I would do stay on here for as long as you would want me to, but I think you understand 
that getting this program up and running and the money out has got to be the priority for 
all of us. Si Yu’os Ma’ase’. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Si Yu’os Ma’ase and before I turn it over to Miss Cho, I did want to just recognize Speaker 
Tina Muña Barnes has joined us, as well as senators Sabina Perez and Senator Joe San 
Agustin. Good morning, Senators and Thank you very much for your time. Hannah, I'm 
turning it over to you. 

Ms. Hannah Cho, Special Projects Coordinator, Guam Department of Labor: 

Håfa Adai guys. I’m Hannah Cho from the Guam Department of Labor. My director was 
thankfully able to get on and give you guys a brief update on what's been going on and 
what we've been working on at the department and truly I really Thank you guys for 
giving us the chance to and from the public about what's going on because I know that 
there are so many questions and so many things going on that people need answers for 
and hopefully this will be the right platform for that. And again you guys probably have a 
bunch of questions, we may not be able to get them get to all of them today, but I've 
been giving out my email address hannah.cho@DOL.guam.gov and I'm answering 
questions every day and trying to get information into the hands of our people. And so 
with you guys if we don't get around to your questions today or you guys come up with 
another question later on or their constituents approach you please feel free to email me 
and I'll be very happy to respond to you guys. 

So, as my director did say the implementation plan was sent to DC. The addendum for 
the FPUC program has been signed and sent, so at present, there are now going over our 
budget, it has been accepted. The implementation plan has been accepted as well. There 
are a few changes that the federal government is asking for however my director and the 
governor made it very clear our people need help now. So, they took the implementation 
plan and have agreed to start allotting money to the island. So, we can help our people 
while adjusting the little bits of the plan that they asked for.  

So, yes, we are set to get the money, hopefully by the end of the week and right now the 
focus for as long as far as the software goes, is to get the employee module up and ready 
so that everybody can start applying and if everything has gone the way we hope if 
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employers have registered, if employers have input their employee data and then the 
money comes in from the federal government and then employees- people want to apply 
and yes they will know instantly if they qualify or not and then we can get money to them 
right away.  

As of 3:30 this morning we have had 744 employers input information on employees 
affected by COVID-19. They reported separation notices for twelve thousand two 
hundred and sixty-two employees about 30% of our projected numbers. Our projected 
number of those applying for unemployment assistance are is about thirty-eight 
thousand and also just Happy Mother's Day to everybody out there.  

So, feel free, ask away. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Hannah, did you want to just take the opportunity at this time to show the earnings 
disregard video? I thought that was very helpful. 

Ms. Cho: 

Yeah, yes that would be a great idea. So, we did get some new guidance that we have an 
earnings disregard. Every state has one, the amount is different for every state. Our 
amount $150 and it's based off Hawaii and it's kind of like a little bit of padding a little bit 
of breathing room to help those that are underemployed or only working part-time still 
qualify for benefits. So, yes, lets watch the video now. 

[Please refer to GDOL Earnings Disregard video.] 

Chairperson Lee: 

Alright. Thank you Hannah and DOL for that very informative video. I did want to just ask 
one question and then we can go to the other senators again we're gonna be going 
around doing one round one question each and then we'll come back around for 
additional questions at this time okay. 

Ms. Cho: 

Sure. 

Chairperson Lee: 

So, Hannah, now that the Federal Pandemic Unemployment Compensation or FPUC 
program has been sent and signed by the Governor that the budget has been approved 
by us DOL, what is the next step? 

Ms. Cho: 

Well, we do have to update our implementation plan. We do have to take out our 
application process up and going online and then just get our people the money that they 
need. 

Chairperson Lee: 
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Okay and is DOL moving forward with the plan? I think the director kind of touched on 
this a little bit, but are you guys moving forward with a plan to ask capable businesses to 
set up computer modules through their respective HR departments and maybe call 
employees to guide them through the online application and maybe banking information 
if they choose the EFT route? 

Ms. Cho: 

Yes, definitely. I'll probably write a press release on it though we really are urging 
employers to help guide, learn, apply and get through this process. It's not exactly easy 
times- everything right now is difficult, so yes definitely. If an employer has not yet 
followed the executive order and has not yet registered at Hire Guam dot com, we really 
need you guys to do that because that’s the first step. The second step is then important 
in putting your employee information of those that have been affected by COVID-19. And 
then the third step is for the employees to then go in and insert their information and 
that system will adjudicate and then and be able to get people the money that they need 
right now to survive. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Okay, great. Thank you very much, Hannah. I'd like to just give an opportunity for my 
colleagues to ask questions. So first up is Speaker Tina Muña Barnes…still on? 

Speaker Muña Barnes: 

Yes! 

Chairperson Lee: 

Good morning, Madam Speaker, do you have any questions? 

Speaker Muña Barnes: 

Good morning. Hi, manana si yu’os. Thank you very much Madam Chair for giving us the 
opportunity and to Hannah good morning and Thank you very much for sharing in the 
presentation with Director Dell'Isola. 

Maybe I just need a verification, Madam Chair. If I may on your one question at this point 
process, on May 5th Director Dell'Isola noted that when they had the visitor industry 
webinar that that the budget requests for Department of Labor for Guam's program 
would be at 924 million and then they talked about the budget now being 276 million 
which is the actual amount for Guam. So, I just wanted to get a clarification, is this 276 
million and the initial deposit to Guam and up to 124 million? Or is this it for Guam? 

Ms. Cho: 

Thank you so much, Madam Speaker for that question. 

No, the budget request that we sent was accepted. We did request 924 million the 276 is 
our first allotment as that draws down we will get another allotment and even if we go 

mailto:senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org


over this the funding for this program is not supposed to run out so we will definitely be 
able to get the money for the people regardless. So yes this is just the first allotment.  

Speaker Muña Barnes: 

Thank you, Thank you very much, Hannah and Madam Chair. I will heed to the 
recommendations for one question around. So, Thank you very much. I do have a couple 
of other questions, but I'll wait my turn. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Okay, great. We'll come back to you. Thank you very much, Madam Speaker. Next up, 
Senator... I'm sorry our Legislative Secretary Senator Shelton. 

Senator Amanda L. Shelton: 

Thank you very much, Madam Chair and Thank you Hannah for that presentation. Happy 
Mother's Day to you I appreciate all the work you and the department are all doing for 
us. 

So, can I just ask a point to clarify I know the PUA application you spoke about, many are 
anxious to put their application in can you just tell us when that link will be live? 

Ms. Cho: 

I wish I could give you a date, however right now I can't. There's new guidance coming 
out and the software. We need to make sure that there's no glitches, there's no crashes 
and that the integrity is there because there are opportunities for fraud, but I will say that 
this situation I mean I feel it too. I was one of the people that answered the 3-1-1 calls I 
heard the people I heard their questions and their need for help. My mother and my 
brother they're both nurses, frontline nurses in California they both caught COVID, 
thankfully they've recovered, but now my mother can't go back to work so I even had to 
help her fill out her online application for unemployment in California. So, it's close to 
me, I feel it. I feel it for the people and I'm sorry I can't give you a date right now, but 
believe me when I say we're working 24/7 to try and get this out as quickly as possible, 
but as efficiently as possible. 

Senator Shelton: 

Thank you very much. I really appreciate that answer and Madam Chair. I'll save my next 
question for the next round. Thank you, Hannah. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you very much, Senator Shelton. I believe the Vice Speaker has also joined us. I 
wanted to give her an opportunity to ask her first question. Vice Speaker Nelson are you 
on? 

Vice Speaker Telena Cruz Nelson: 

Yes, Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair and Thank you to those present who are 
supporting- hold on forgive me there's some kind of feedback here sometimes. Thank 

mailto:senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org


you for your patience, yes I wanted to ask is there a- have we seen this cash realized for 
the unemployment assistance program or do we have a timeline on when the 
Government of Guam will be receiving this money to hand out to the people? 

Ms. Cho: 

Yes, so we did get our budget. Our budget was accepted by the US Department of Labor. 
We will get our first allotment of $276 million by the end of this week.  

Vice Speaker Nelson: 

By the end of this week. Will the people that have been going through the process that 
you mentioned earlier, how soon will they be able to see those checks? If you're gonna 
get the money by the end of this week, how soon can you process for those checks to be 
sent out? 

Ms. Cho: 

As soon as the employee module is up it is designed to be able to get money out right 
away. Especially if the applicants have opted for wire transfer as opposed to a paper 
check.  

Vice Speaker Nelson: 

So, is that 24 hours to 48 hours? Three days? 

Ms. Cho: 

I’m sorry at this point I can’t give you an exact date. 

Vice Speaker Nelson: 

I’m sorry? 

Ms. Cho: 

At this point, I apologize, I can’t give you an exact date, Vice Speaker. 

Vice Speaker Nelson: 

Okay. Thank you, Madam Chair. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Sorry, Ms. Cho, I think she's asking if once the money is all loaded and the application is 
ready to go, once the application is received and everything is approved like how long- 
how quickly is the turnaround? Especially if they choose EFT or a direct banking wire 
transfer how quickly can you turn it around 24 hours 48 hours? 

Ms. Cho: 

Okay, Thank you so much for the clarification, Madam Chair. That is a great question and 
I will get back to you by the end of the day. I don't have that and I don't want to 
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speculate and give you guys the wrong answer, but I'll get back to you guys by the end of 
the day with that information. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you Ms. Cho and Thank you very much Vice Speaker. We’ll come back to you if- I'm 
sure you have additional questions. At this time, Senator Kelly Marsh (Taitano), do you 
have any questions? 

Senator Kelly Marsh (Taitano), Ph.D.: 

To everyone in the Department of Labor who has been working so diligently to get 
everything done. The question that I have is when the Director Dell'Isola was providing us 
a very good explanation and really walked through a lot of the steps of the process, he 
mentioned getting PDF material of documents, but we do know through the Department 
of Education and others that there are so many on island who don't have a lot of access 
to computers and stuff and so it was really great to have them encourage others to help 
each other.  

My question is for these documents what I've done is I've told people who have less 
access in the past to just go ahead and take photographs of documents if they can't scan 
them, will that be accepted by the Department if that's what's accessible if they can just 
take a photograph of their documents? 

Ms. Cho: 

Yes, a photo of a letter, of a separation letter, anything like that. We're accepting many 
different forms because we know that some employers have left the island because their 
business closed and there's no way to get a hold of them. So some people are just going 
to have to self-certify and so we're going to accept that, initially. There will eventually be 
an audit those that have been found to have committed fraudulent activity will have to 
deal with the Federal Government on that, but yes we will take photocopies, we'll take 
photographs, we'll take scans, we'll take what you can give us so that we can verify you 
and help you get the assistance that you need. 

Senator Marsh (Taitano): 

Si Yu’os Ma’ase. That's really good to hear. I think that opens it up for a whole lot of 
people. It's real easy and it takes like a second to take a photograph of a letter or a 
document. Si Yu’os Ma’ase, Madam Chair. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you so much, Senator. That’s a great point Senator Kelly Thank you very much. 
Next up I'll turn it to Senator Joe San Agustin and then Senator Sabina Perez. 

Senator Joe S. San Agustin: 

Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair. A simple question I understand you're asking... the 
Directors asking that employers set up like a banquet room and all that stuff. Does the 
Department of Labor plan on setting up some kind of system like that where everybody 
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else can come there, but what everybody's just going through their own employers if you 
have a bunch of employees can they go to a center and how does the Department Labor 
plan on doing that? 

Ms. Cho: 

Yes, we will be setting up- we are actually in the process of setting up an application 
center with respect to the social distancing guidelines and mandates that are still in 
place. We will we're also hoping to be able to set things up that Mayor's offices and 
whatnot, that's part of our budget request, but yes we will definitely have a center where 
people can call in people can come by appointment and they can get the help that they 
need for the application process if they don't have access to computers or technology or 
are just not tech savvy. 

Senator San Agustin: 

Alright, Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you, Senator Joe. Senator Sabina Perez and then Senator “Pedo” Terlaje. 

Senator Sabina Flores Perez: 

Håfa Adai, Hannah and Thank you for all your hard work and Thank you to the 
Department of Labor for all their hard work. I know it's been very trying during these 
times. So, I understand in the newspapers there was a listing of how many businesses 
that actually started to register for the Department of Labor and I'm just wondering what 
is that number and is there an active outreach to those businesses that have not yet 
signed up for the online service. 

Ms. Cho: 

Sorry, I have an updated number from as of 3:30 this morning. As of 3:30 this morning 
we have had 744 employers input information on employees with their reported 
separation notices of twelve thousand two hundred and sixty-two (12,262).  

We are still pushing to get more employers to input their information. I have heard even 
by talking to people that they thought by emailing our initial set up of Rapid Response 
that they thought that that was them inputting employee information so that's another 
one of those PSAs that we’ll probably be creating shortly to get the word out even more 
in a broader sense so that employers understand that this is what they have to do in 
order to help their employees. So yes, we are working on it. 

Senator Perez: 

Okay, Thank you. I'll save- I’ll reserve my question for the next round. 

Ms. Cho: 

Thank you, Senator. 
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Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you very much, Senator. Senator “Pedo” Terlaje, you're recognized. 

Senator Jose “Pedo” Terlaje: 

First off, I want to thank Hannah for sharing this wonderful presentation with us. Actually 
Senator San Agustin brought up the question on is the Department of Labor planning on 
having a central office for some people that don't have the capability to make this 
application and do it personally and next with that and I think Hannah mention about 
maybe using the mayor's office which is maybe more appropriate because people can 
have access you know they live around the mayor's office, but another thing that I 
wanted to bring up is what do these people need to bring if they are to come to that 
office for the application? 

Ms. Cho: 

Thank you so much, Senator for that question. The first thing they will need is an ID, it 
doesn't have to be a passport, but it can be a Guam ID, a Guam driver's license, an out-of-
state license. As long as it's valid and it proves who you are, that's what we need initially. 
If they can, a letter from their employer stating their furlough date or the reduced wages 
date and that kind of information whatever they can get and if they can't get that then 
they'll- again they'll self-certify they can write the letter to themselves and please be 
honest and then when they have that then then your social security number and that's 
basically it. And then we'll help them from there. 

Senator Terlaje: 

Thank you. Thank you very much. 

Ms. Cho: 

Thank you. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you very much, Senator. Minority Leader Senator Telo Taitague and then Senator 
Louise Muña.  

Senator Telo T. Taitague: 

Si Yu’os Ma’ase and Thank you Hannah for taking your time and Happy Mother’s Day to 
you. And most especially I’m sorry to hear about your mother and brother, I hope he's 
doing okay in California, we'll keep them in our prayers. Please give them our best and 
Thank you for being at the front line for us. 

Hannah in the Governor's budget that she put out with regards to the CARES Act on how 
to spend 117 million dollars, there's a section in there that says Department of Labor and 
if I'm not mistaken it is allocating $100,000 and this $10,000 is going to go to you for 
MOU between GCC for the temporary PUA/FPUC processing center. I know that people 
are talking about it so is this what everyone's talking about with regards to what the 
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Department of Labor is going to do to assist individuals who don't have the capability of 
having that capability of computer or internet service? If not, then what is this $100,000 
exactly going to do between the Department of Labor and GCC?  

Ms. Cho: 

GCC has been a longtime partner of the Department of Labor especially with our 
programs via AJC such as apprenticeship, boot camps, dislocated worker training, all of 
that so again we will continue to partner with them they have great resources and great 
knowledge and that is what the money is allocated for. Thank you. 

Senator Taitague: 

You didn't say exactly what it's for you just said that you had a great relationship with 
these parts, but what exactly will the $100,000 be used exactly for? 

Ms. Cho: 

Again, yeah, we didn't want to divulge the location as of yet until we were closer to 
launch because we don't want the location to become inundated with people hoping that 
it's open or thinking that the application process has begun, but yes GCC is our partner. 

Senator Taitague: 

Okay, okay. I'll let it go from there. Thank you, Madam Chair. 

Ms. Cho: 

Thank you so much, Senator.  

Chairperson Lee: 

Senator Louise Muña? 

Senator Louise B. Muña: 

Thank you. Thank you, Thank you, Madam Chair and Thank you again Hannah for being 
here for us to ask all these questions because we are getting asked a lot of questions out 
in the public.  

So, just as a suggestion maybe for like a set up area there maybe you could consider 
maybe libraries because libraries have computers already and so that could be a 
suggestion for people in the public to come in it and have opportunities to get online at 
the libraries, but you did mention that you projected about thirty eight thousand 
employees that were separated that's projected, but only twelve thousand- a little over 
twelve thousand has registered already do you- I mean do you have any idea why? I'm- is 
it just some of the employers are just not registering their employees? Because that's a 
big number between thirty-eight thousand and twelve. So, what could be... what do you 
think could be that reason why there hasn't been enough people registered that were 
separated from their jobs? 

Ms. Cho: 
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I will say that since we launched phase two, which is the employer module, numbers 
have gone up continuously every day so I believe it's just a little- just a matter of time for 
employers to be able to log on and input the information because again some employers 
have 100 people versus a small business that only has five people and therefore it is a 
process for them and that's what I believe the holdup might be and of course just 
continually reminding them that they need to all follow the executive order given by the 
governor. 

Senator Muña: 

Just really quickly, when the employers apply or register their business do they get an 
acceptance letter or something saying that they're in the system? 

Ms. Cho: 

Well, they have to be validated. They need to register and by validated I mean they have 
to upload a business license, contractor's license to ensure that they are indeed a true 
company and there is a section on Hire Guam dot com where they can scan that in or 
they can email it in as well so after we review that and determined that this is a 
legitimate company then they are verified. 

Senator Muña: 

And it's automatic then their employees can start receiving? Okay. Okay. I'll save my 
other questions for next round. Thank you, Madam Chair. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you, Senator Muña. Senator Jim Moylan and then Senator Castro. 

Senator James C. Moylan: 

Thank you, Madam Chair and Thank you Hannah. So, I was able to listen to the Director 
this morning on the couple radio programs and one of the things he mentioned was the 
online application process and maybe it's being streamlined a little bit more, but I 
understand from what he was saying was it takes approximately 40 minutes to complete 
online. A lot of information to put in there so understanding his intent for the companies 
to open their doors for their employees to come on in and help complete those 
applications but you know pretty much we can project that not all of those companies 
will be able to do that like some of these hotels are used for COVID-19 quarantine places 
so they won't be able to assist. And I'm understanding the budget requirements and 
where possibly this Center will be to help these employees go online. So, what I what I 
like to know is what is the Directors projection on the amount of employees when this 
staff room or this hall is going to be opened up and if he has projections that with the 
budget he'll have so many computers for example and so many staffers there with the 
proper distance so people can actually sit behind a desk so many feet apart in distance to 
help. Because if we're at 30% now and we're hoping to get over 900 million dollars we 
most definitely want it to be as close to as a hundred percent as possible so we can bring 
this money back into helping the families, but more importantly to get that a new money 

mailto:senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org


circulating into the economy so the faster we do this. So my question is we have a 
projection on how many employees GDOL would be looking at in order to help those that 
qualify to input this information online which they said is a must, please.  

Ms. Cho: 

I'm so sorry you cut out there and I didn't hear the exact question. 

Senator Moylan: 

Okay, am I coming in clear now? Can you hear me all right? 

Ms. Cho: 

I heard... I heard the first part, I'm so sorry I didn't hear the last sentence. 

Senator Moylan: 

No problem. So, what is the projection that GDOL is looking at hiring to set up this Center 
where the unemployed folks that qualify can come on in and register to get the 
assistance that they need and register online? Are we looking at 50 people? 

Ms. Cho: 

Yes, that is the number. We're looking at about 50 people. We will be detailing GovGuam 
employees as well as bringing temporary workers to help people. 

Senator Moylan: 

Okay, alright. Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair. Thank you, Hannah. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you, Senator. Senator Will Castro and then Senator Mary Torres. 

Senator William M. Castro: 

Thank you, Madam Chair for the opportunity. Thank you, Hanna for taking the time 
sharing some of your experiences. 

I can understand and appreciate some of the technical aspects of the online platform and 
so my question is more on the technical side. Would you happen to know if there's a 
possibility that there will be a per-transaction fee knowing that will come from the 
government of Guam account let's say to a banking institution would there be a 
transaction fee? And part of the same question if there is one will that fee be borne by 
the government, by the recipient, or by the banking institution? 

Ms. Cho: 

Thank you, Senator for that question. I just wrote it down that is a very good question. I 
don't have the information in front of me right now, but I'll get back to you by the end of 
the day. 

Senator Castro: 
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Thank you, Madam Chair. Thank you. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you, Senator Castro. Senator Torres, you're recognized. 

Senator Mary Camacho Torres: 

Morning. Hannah, I appreciate that you and the director came off and in a very humbly, 
but responsible way described that this is going to be a very difficult process because it is 
a federal program and that it will require the assistance of so many people to come on 
board considering that your projections are 38,000 applicants and we are right now at 
12,262 notifications of separation from jobs, but what I wanted to just clarify for people 
that are also looking in terms of what we're looking at is the is the process now going to 
be... the applicants are those applications online going to be scrubbed at the local level 
and funds dispersed at the local level or is everything going straight to US Department of 
Labor for verification and then determination of the amounts? 

I'm just trying to do if for facilities say rendered understand how much of it is locally 
controlled and dispersed versus federally controlled and dispersed in terms of 
applications and awards of fund. 

Ms. Cho: 

Thank you, Senator. Part of the difficulty of setting up our software is that we wanted to 
ensure that there were many steps put in place to prevent fraud so that's why we have 
the employer module and employee module and those will speak to each other and give 
do over verification and then the application will be able to tell the claimant right away if 
they are eligible or not. So that part we don't have to wait for the federal government, 
you know the federal government is working us with right now to create that to make 
sure that we can get that information doing approval information to the payments right 
away and then the finances again we're getting our first allotment this week. I’m not 
quite sure if that needs to be verified by USDOL, I don't have that info, but I'll write it 
down and I’ll get back to you by the end of the day. 

Senator Torres: 

Yeah, because I think that's where we're trying to understand the facility you know what- 
how easy is it, how difficult it is, how many layers of bureaucracy do people have to 
expect because I think that what's important is that if people understand what they're up 
against then it's a lot more palatable to go through the difficult process as opposed to 
thinking it's too easy or very easy and then it turns out to be much more difficult. So you 
know the fact that you were you were upfront about that I think is important so that it 
not only gets people in the right frame of mind, but it helps to rally all the people that are 
in a position to help to now jump in and help and I think that we certainly want to 
facilitate as best as we can so as much as you can provide about how the rest of us can 
help you know employers or anybody that would be interested in standing up processing 
centers similar to what we did with the war claims applications for example. You know I 
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think that if the people can be rallied that way I'm sure people would step up to it. And 
please stay safe we pray for your health.  

Ms. Cho: 

Thank you so much, Senator I truly appreciate that. Thank you. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you very much, Senator Torres. And Hannah, actually we have been on calls with 
you previously, last week with the Vice Chair of this Committee, Senator Clynt Ridgell. 
Unfortunately, he's unable to join us for this call, but he did send in this question, so I'll 
ask it on his behalf.  

He wanted to just give you an opportunity to inform the committee and the public about 
returning to safe and healthful workplaces and the new OSHA guidance that you've 
received so if you could speak a little bit to that I know you know we're now in PCOR2 
and many people are going back to work so his concern and one that I share, I'm sure all 
the other senators do too is how what are some of the guidance some of the guidelines 
that you guys are pushing through OSHA to help make sure that we have safe and 
healthy workplaces for people to return to? 

Ms. Cho: 

Yes, we actually didn’t get new guidance from OSHA just a few days ago. Ten steps that 
we can do to make the workplace safer such as wiping down consistently, but do you 
guys have that PDF able to pop up like we had for the commercial? 

Chairperson Lee: 

Barry, are you able to pull that one up? Do you know what the file is called Hannah? 

Ms. Cho: 

I believe it was called the OSHA Ten Steps for a Safer Workplace. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Okay, great. Yes, there it is. 

Ms. Cho: 

So, they didn't make it too complicated. First if you're sick stay home. Incorrect 
respiratory etiquette including covering when you cough, when you sneeze. Installing a 
hand sanitizer and having only essential workers in and as much as possible. Letting those 
who can telecommute telecommute. Trying not to share phones or computers or 
supplies between employees so that we can keep, we can keep them safer and bacteria, 
germs, viruses whatnot, won't be transferred. Regularly clean and disinfect surfaces, 
equipment and of course you EPA approved cleaning chemicals with labels that do verify 
that they are  approved for treating coronavirus. Following the manufacturer's 
instructions for all cleaning products and disinfection products and encouraging workers 
to report any safety and health concerns.  
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Chairperson Lee: 

Okay, great Thank you very much, Hannah and thanks to Senator Ridgell for his question. 
We're gonna go back to the beginning for our second round of questions and so I just 
wanted to ask you Hannah, one second let me just pull this up.  

Currently it's advised for self-employed individuals affected by COVID-19 to apply for 
unemployment relief under PUA, so what is the department's interpretation for self-
employed individuals being affected as a “direct result of COVID-19” and as a kind of sub-
question to that, I just wanted to give you an opportunity to clarify self-employed 
individuals and how GDOL is viewing that, like what is your policy? 

Ms. Cho: 

Okay, yes. Self-employed individuals include anybody from freelancers, to gig workers, to 
those who own their own small business and they're their only employee. So, it could be 
anything from a dog walker to an event planner and so it's self-employed just basically 
you're just yourself working for yourself. And I'm sorry what was the rest of the question? 

Chairperson Lee: 

So, I guess I just wanted to make sure we clarify if gig workers don't get layoff notices per 
se but they just aren't getting the car so maybe four gigs would that worker be eligible for 
PUA? 

Ms. Cho: 

Yes, if they- let’s say they're a musician that used to perform at crest every week and of 
course now the business is shut down and they can no longer perform and no longer 
earn their income that is a direct they are directly impacted COVID-19 and therefore it 
would qualify for unemployment benefits. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Okay, Thank you very much, Hannah and we'll go back to the Speaker if she's still on. 
Speaker Muña Barnes? For a second round of questions? 

Speaker Muña Barnes: 

Okay, Thank you very much, Madam Chair and Thank you for answering- I mean asking 
that question previously Madam Chair,  that was one of the main questions I wanted to 
ask for those that have self-businesses as sole proprietors and are self-employed and 
don't have any extra employees. 

I did want to ask something pertaining to, that as it relates to those who don't apply for 
the PPP, but apply for the PUA and FPUC and after the deadline because that would 
reach maybe the PUA and the FPUC will probably lead us all the way up to July in or as far 
in December what happens after that if the businesses or the sole proprietorships still do 
not have the capability of coming back because they are either related to the tourism 
industry or those for example that have literally printing jobs or whatever and and don't 
have the access of the businesses starting up for the next I guess year and a half. How 
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does that relate to to them after- because if I'm not mistaken the PUA and the FPUC and 
even the PPP are from March when Guam made its initial emerge- the executive order 
was signed, March 16 and then maybe all the way up to July and then the EIP will bring us 
all the way up to December. How does it work after that if the business or the sole 
proprietor still doesn't have the opportunity to get the business it needs to start up 
because there's not enough of businesses- I mean opportunity. 

Ms. Cho: 

Thank you so much, Speaker for that question. Let me just go over a brief overview of the 
PUA and the FPUC.  

So PUA is from, I believe January 27th to December 31st depending on when you got laid 
off and the time frame for in an individual is 39 weeks and in the FPUC the Federal 
Pandemic Unemployment Compensation program that's the additional $600 and that's 
good from the beginning of April through the end of July and that’s the additional $600 
that you can receive as long as you qualify for PUA. So those are the two unemployment 
benefit programs that we have. The PPP that's an FDA program it is an FDA program so 
that's separate.  

However the other question that you asked, as of right now the program is set to go until 
December 31st; however it would be up to USDOL to extend it beyond that if there are 
still business is suffering. 

Speaker Muña Barnes: 

Okay, so there is an opportunity for more resources to come in based on the application 
process right? So, would they have to re-apply after the problem after you received or 
does that become automatic? 

Ms. Cho: 

That would depend on how they write the rules and regulations if they do in extension. 

Speaker Muña Barnes: 

Okay, Thank you very much, Madam Chair. Thank you very much, Hannah. Appreciate it. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you, Madam Speaker. Madam Vice Speaker, you're recognized. 

Vice Speaker Nelson: 

Thank you, Madam Chair. Hannah, I want to Thank you for all the work that you've been 
doing and also the folks at the Department of Labor. I know you guys have been working 
on this for a very long time. I know you've been putting out your best effort and you 
know I believe we share a common goal and that is to helping those that are 
unemployed, especially on this, so Thank you for letting us know that you will get back to 
us on the timeline once you get the money at the end of the week.  
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A couple weeks back there was a news article that mentioned some of the selection 
criteria for the States to avail to the Pandemic Unemployment Assistance and one of 
them was that if the state or the territory did not have a current Unemployment 
Insurance Program and also that or that they have exhausted the funds out of the 
Unemployment Insurance Program. And so with that I was thinking could the 
government, just in case, right, just in case we don't see the money being given out to 
people, because of something that would happen past next week, right, just in case were 
delayed again, I know it's not the work that you do that delays us it's really working with 
the federal counterparts and so just in case we come into another roadblock again. I was 
thinking could the government pay forward a one-time payment or two-time payments 
and would that qualify as exhausting the program? Pay forward to those that have been 
unemployed since the Governor declared a state of emergency? Would the government 
be able to do that without putting the PUA or the FPUC at risk or without putting us from 
receiving the PUA or the FPUC from the Federal Government drawing down without 
putting our government at risk for that?  

Ms. Cho: 

Thank you so much for that question, Vice Speaker, some of that I can answer, but a lot 
of that would be between the Governor's office and the Federal Government. Part of the 
complication about giving out payments right now is that there is no application process 
up yet. I know a lot of people are comparing this to the war claims; however when the 
Governor was able to pre-pay those war claims those had already applied and been 
adjudicated and so they were qualified. Right now, we're still building the process for 
people to even qualify so that's where things get a little bit difficult.  

Vice Speaker Nelson: 

Right, okay. Yes, because I know that the Department of Labor has worked tirelessly to 
implement several different types of application processes and data collection efforts 
and so I just want to Thank you for the hard work that you guys are doing there. 

Ms. Cho: 

That's what we do. 

Vice Speaker Nelson: 

I just... so that the biggest snaffu is really the application process, right? So with the data 
that you've collected or the data that you've collected thus far would you be able to use 
that data to process it locally or is there more to it that we're not seeing? 

Ms. Cho: 

It's because we have to have that dual verification to prevent fraud because there are so 
many opportunities for fraud here and because that's not set up yet that's part of our 
process that will be completed. 

Vice Speaker Nelson: 
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And is there a reason- sorry, Madam Chair, Thank you for your patient. And is there a 
reason we don't have that mechanism set up yet to validate whether because I was 
thinking that the employer letters that were given to the employees to validate that they 
were laid off, they lost hours, or they were let go is that not justification enough, do you 
need something else? 

Ms. Cho: 

Well, the way that our system is set up is that the employer goes in initially and inputs 
the information and then the employee... I'm sorry the employer goes in and then the 
employee goes in and inputs their information... That is a very good question. I’ll get back 
to you by the end of the day. 

Vice Speaker Nelson: 

Alright, thank you so much Hannah and Thank you for the work that you're doing. We 
really appreciate it. Thank you, Madam Chair. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you, Madam Vice Speaker and I just want to reiterate, I don't think any one of us in 
the Legislature- I don't think people that GDOL are satisfied with, you know, how long this 
is taking. We've all received phone calls from people who are really, you know, just 
hanging on by a thread so you know we really appreciate kind of answering these 
questions. I know some of this is out of your hands and everything that is within your 
control I you know you're trusting, but we are also verifying that you guys are really on 
top of it and making sure that this gets out to the people as soon as humanly possible. So 
again, thanks for answering these questions. Thanks Vice Speaker. Next I'll go to our 
Legislative Secretary, Senator Shelton. 

Senator Shelton: 

Thank you very much, Madam Chair and again thank you Hannah for all the information. I 
know that what we've been talking about here in this hearing and everything that you're 
focusing on at DOL is this you know emergency response right now, how we're going to 
help everyone today who has lost their jobs due to the COVID crisis.  

I'm wondering if the department, I realize that you have a lot on your plate, you're setting 
up this huge program for us, but I'm wondering if the department is looking at additional 
grants from the US Department of Labor. I noticed that some other states are taking 
advantage of different kinds of grants that help to restart the economic engines of their 
state to help small businesses and self-employed people train in connectivity and to help 
them get back to work doing telecommunication. I just you know really transitioning to 
this new way of life also helping with job coaching short-term training for those who have 
just been displaced, are we looking at any of those opportunities, Hannah? 

Ms. Cho: 
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I don't know that determination that is a question for my Director, I will message him as 
soon as we're done with this and I'll get back to you.  

Senator Shelton: 

Okay, Thank you so much. I know it's kind of looking forward a little more than we are 
right now, The focus it really needs to be for this program to help, but I know it will be 
also reassuring for the people to know that we're trying to help them in these other ways 
as well. So, I appreciate that Hannah.  

Ms. Cho: 

Thank you, Senator. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you very much Senator Shelton. Senator Kelly Marsh (Taitano) and then Senator 
Joe.  

Senator Marsh (Taitano): 

Si Yu’os Ma’ase, Madam Chair and Hannah for continuing to tackle all of our many 
questions. 

So, is there a way or some sort of process that's in place that employees can let the 
Department of Labor know that they are trying to get their employer to sign up? So I 
know that you're reminding employers and you've made really great profits I think it's 
only been a week or so that you've gotten 30 percent of the estimated employees signed 
up through their employers, but is there anything that employees can do to encourage 
their employer to hurry up and get signed up?  

Ms. Cho: 

And that you know what that is a question that I have gotten some employees are 
worried that their employer just won't sign up won't follow the executive order from the 
Governor and they're not sure if their employer has signed up, so they can email us and 
first check if their employer did indeed register and if not I would even call the employer 
and say you need to register and follow the Governor's Executive Order. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Hannah, can you just reiterate the email address? 

Ms. Cho: 

Oh, it would be a VOSemployer@dol.guam.gov 

Chairperson Lee: 

VOS? 

Ms. Cho: 
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Yes, V as in victor Oh S as in Sam employer at DOL dot-Guam dot-gov. Or you can just 
email me at hannah.cho@dol.guam.gov, I’m really happy to help all of our people, that 
would be neat. 

Senator Marsh (Taitano): 

Si Yu’os Ma’ase, I think that will set a lot of minds at ease and so when you said that you 
would be able to call you mean that the Department of Labor would be able to call the 
employer to remind them to carry out the Governor's Executive Order? 

Ms. Cho: 

I'm volunteering myself. I would even do it. I don't- I would have to get permission from 
the director to make that a GDOL thing, but I'm just saying I would even do it. 

Chairperson Lee: 

And I just want to step in and clarify here, employees would also be able to self-certify 
under penalty of perjury so if the employees are having trouble getting information from 
their employers, they can self-certify that. Is that correct, Hannah?  

Ms. Cho: 

Yes, that's correct. Thank you. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Great, thank you Senator Kelly. We'll move to Senator Joe San Agustin and then Senator 
Sabina Perez. 

Senator San Agustin: 

Thank you, Madam Chair and you know Hannah on the Department of Labor, Thank you 
for all that you guys are doing. And my only message is like I've said so many folks get her 
done. And that same message I send out to all the employers and employees, don't 
blame nobody, you have the opportunity to get what you could get. Stop pointing fingers, 
stop looking at the mirror, go out there and just apply and reach out to you folks and you 
folks I know will reciprocate and reach out to everybody, but we can't be pointing fingers 
no more. And if there's anything that you need help from the Guam Legislature, please 
reach out to your Oversight Chair Senator Régine and let's do what we need to do to help 
the people of Guam. 

Ms. Cho: 

Thank you very much, Senator. Thank you, Madam Chair. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you, Senator Joe. Senators Sabina and then Senator “Pedo” Terlaje. 

Senator Perez: 

Thank you, Madam Chair. 
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So, Hannah, what would you say to employers who are holding off on signing up online 
because they received the PPP the Payment Protection Plan or they're awaiting response 
to receive it? What would your advice be or what does the guidance of the Department 
of Labor have in regards to those companies that have received the [Paycheck] 
Protection Plan? 

Ms. Cho: 

Well, the Governor's Executive Order didn't go into the PPP and just simply stated that 
employers and businesses that have had employees affected by COVID-19 must register 
on hireguam.com, so that's what I would reiterate to them that they still have to register. 

Senator Perez: 

Okay, so you know considering that you know there may be some sort of conflict there 
because you know to be unemployed you know versus you're unemployed you know that 
there's a line you you're employed based on the Payment Protection Plan, but yeah so 
you know I guess, so basically what you're saying is that businesses should just go ahead 
and register even though they avail themselves with the Payment Protection Plan and is 
that is that along the guidelines that USDOL has? 

Ms. Cho: 

Oh, well that was the Governor's Executive Order; however one of the questions I did 
receive from a caller was “I received my PPP, but it wasn't enough to pay all my 
employees,” so they were only able to hire back a couple of their employees, not all of 
them so in that instance, yes they have the PPP, yes they have a couple of employees 
they can pay, but they're still the other ones that they can't pay so therefore they also 
need to get on register and put that data into hireguam.com. So there are instances like 
that pop up, PPP, runs out, the business might take a while to pick back up, they may 
have to furlough again, there are so many things that could happen so I would 
recommend just register. 

Senator Perez: 

Okay and could we get clarification on that issue regards to Department of Labor as far as 
US Department of Labor goes? 

Ms. Cho: 

I'm sorry what clarification? 

Senator Perez: 

Clarification on whether being in the PPP program would disqualify someone from 
registering for the PUA. 

Ms. Cho: 
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Well, individual can only receive benefits from one Federal Program, therefore if they're 
a bit their business applied and received PPP and they are getting their paycheck, they do 
not- that disqualifies them from unemployment. 

Senator Perez: 

Yeah, so do you see what I'm trying to say there? 

Chairperson Lee: 

Well, Senator, let me just jump in really quick here. I just want to clarify this is a two-step 
process. So PUA and unemployment programs are two step processes. First the business 
has to register and they upload individual or the affected individual employees 
information. So everybody should at least do step 1 even if they're they've up for PPP, 
they should at least be in a system and registered and then they can choose to do step 2 
at that point if they don't if they aren't awarded PPP then at least they can move on to 
step 2.That's my understanding. So again, this is a two-step process, we're encouraging 
people to get on HireGuam to input their information. Inputting their information on 
HireGuam should not disqualify them from receiving PPP, as I understand it. 

Senator Perez: 

Okay, so yes that's what I wanted to get clarification on because I don't want anybody to 
become disqualified for any of these programs. So, I think it'd be good to have some sort 
of a statement from the Department of Labor or a guidance, some sort of guidance that 
can, you know, answer these employers' concerns. I’m sure you know I'm sure they're 
they're working on behalf of their employees, but you know I have something that's 
written in stone saying that you know you're not going to be disqualified from this 
funding. 

Chairperson Lee: 

That’s a great question, Senator. So when the PPP runs out, then the employers can input 
the affected workers, but the affected worker cannot like I said cannot get a paycheck 
through the PPP and apply for PUA at the same time, because you can only benefit from 
one Federal Program at a time, so yeah. I'm sure that Hannah and GDOL will provide the 
committee and you Senator a specific response to that question, but that's when I think 
it's a good question to ask because many I'm sure many people are kind of in that boat 
and I want to be able to avail of these programs. 

Senator Perez: 

Great because I just want to make sure that's very clear and if there could be any- is that 
going to be online as far as the implementation plan? Is that all going to be available for 
the public to see in case they have any sort of these concerns? 

Ms. Cho: 

The implementation plan that we sent to you as well? 

Senator Perez: 
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Yes. I'm not sure if it’s going to be online. I know if you want a copy of it, we would be 
happy to share the information. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Hannah, you will be providing frequently asked questions though, right? 

Ms. Cho: 

Yes, and I was about to say that I'm creating a FAQs daily. There are so many what-if 
scenarios with this program. So I've released- my department has released three FAQs so 
far. I'm working on creating more, there are so many questions such as, you know the 
one I got the other day is if I owe child support will they garnish my PUA and my FPUC 
and the answer is yes they will. So, again so many what if situations and so I'm creating as 
FAQs as possible to help people understand. 

Senator Perez: 

Thank you, Hannah. And Thank you, Madam Chair. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank Senator. We're gonna go to Senator “Pedo” Terlaje and then Senator Telo 
Taitague. 

Senator Terlaje: 

Thank you very much, Madam Chair and Hannah. Thanks very much and I want to thank 
all the employees of the Department of Labor for their hard work.  

The one thing that I wanted to ask was we expect the 276 million to be coming by us by 
in about a week right? 

Ms. Cho: 

Yes, by the end of the week. 

Senator Terlaje: 

So, the eligibility for such unemployment claim will be determined by the Guam 
Department of Labor, right? 

Ms. Cho: 

By the application process. 

Senator Terlaje: 

So, what is the timeline for people to be notified that they qualified or not qualified? 

Ms. Cho: 

The online application will tell them right away that's why we're encouraging everybody 
to if they don't have access to the internet, or a laptop, or they're not tech savvy, we're 
encouraging them to get with their son, their daughter, whatnot to help them do that. 
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Otherwise, also we are standing up our processing center and we will also help them with 
that. 

Senator Terlaje: 

So, there's not going to be any background information- because you even mentioned 
that we expect that there's going to be some fraud that's going to go on during this time 
so the investigation or to research the information that is provided by the claimant is not 
going to be done at that point? 

Ms. Cho: 

USDOL will eventually send out an auditor to go through all of this to ensure that there 
wasn't any fraud committed. 

Senator Terlaje: 

So, that's going to be done before the person is notified that is eligible or not, right? 

Ms. Cho: 

No, that's going to happen after. The goal right now is to help those in need and those 
that did commit fraud will be subject to the penalties and one of that got all the money. 

Senator Terlaje: 

Thank you. 

Ms. Cho: 

Thank you, Senator. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you, Senator “Pedo”. Senator Telo Taitague you are recognized and then senator 
Louise Muña. 

Senator Taitague: 

Thank you, Madam Chair and Thank you again Hannah for sticking out on this. Sometimes 
these things run about four hours. I hope you have some snacks sitting right next to you. 

Hannah, it was mentioned earlier on with the Director he mentioned about one and a 
half months in order for this to get up and standing and so that time frame that he 
mentioned, can you tell me from one and a half months from what day until what with 
regards to what he was talking about the one and a half months? 

Ms. Cho: 

I'm sorry, my internet was spotty in the beginning and I didn’t hear everything. I 
apologize, I should apologize. I'm not sure what that was- what that statement was. 

Senator Taitague: 
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Okay, so Director Dell'Isola mentioned that it's going to take about one and a half months 
for this to be implemented, this whole process to get going, so can you tell me when that 
one and a half month began? Did it begin last week? Is the countdown a week ago, two 
weeks ago? Or is a countdown starting as soon as the money's in the bank? I wasn't quite 
sure what he was explaining.  

Ms. Cho: 

Okay, I will speak to him and I'll get clarification and I will get it right back to you. 

Senator Taitague: 

Okay, I really appreciate it and that Madam Chair, I just wanted to say one thing, a 
comment. I again appreciate everything you're doing and a lot of questions that were 
coming up with regards to ensuring that employers provide the information needed at 
DOL.  

You are familiar with Bill 333 that was recently passed that had a section in there that 
discussed exactly what you can do, providing some teeth that you need in order to get 
these employers to provide that and very important information. So are you familiar with 
Bill 333 that was recently overridden by the Governor by overridden by the Legislature 
Governor veto. 

Ms. Cho: 

I'm sorry were asking me or are you asking Madam Chair? 

Senator Taitague: 

Just leaving you a little comment you know, if you'd like to review that Bill that just 
became law, overridden by the Legislature and it's Section 5.  

Give you a little bit more teeth, Hannah on moving forward with these employers who 
are not providing that information that's needed and it's not necessarily just because the 
employees. Because this data is important for funding coming to Guam, the amount of 
money that we are going to get. So a lot of times it's based on not demographics, but 
population. They decide how much money comes to our island, so it's important to get as 
much data as you can. Bill 333 Section 5 has some teeth to provide the Department of 
Labor a little bit of help in getting that information to you. So it's just a comment and 
again Si Yu’os Ma’ase. 

Ms. Cho: 

Thank you and yes I will definitely look at that actually that was me last night. Thank you. 

Senator Taitague: 

Thank you. 

Chairperson Lee: 
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Minority Leader, Thank you very much. We'll move to Senator Louise Muña and then 
Senator James Moylan, but I just wanna let my colleagues know, after this round of 
questioning we're gonna take a quick five-minute recess and then we'll come back on for 
additional questions should there be any so we'll move to Senator Louise right now. 
Senator Louise you have the floor.  

Senator Muña: 

Thank you, Madam Chair and I really do appreciate this one question per round, I'm 
actually going to have to log off after this because my mom is currently in the hospital 
and I just got some information on her status, so after this I'm gonna log off. So, if I can 
maybe just ask a couple of questions here before I log off?  

So yeah my question my first question is if someone was separated from their job and 
then gone back and just working part-time, would they still be able to qualify for the 
unemployment assistance? That would be my first question. 

Ms. Cho: 

I'm sorry I hope your mother is doing okay, let me to start off by saying that. 

The main qualifier for unemployment assistance is your income. So if they're working 
part-time it just depends on how much they're making that will qualify them or disqualify 
them. 

Senator Louise B. Muña: 

Okay, so based on their income, basically. So whether they're working full-time or part-
time it's the income bracket.  

Ms. Cho: 

So like the video that we watched, right? And so like the video we watched with the 
earning the disregard, so with that that's how people are qualified. 

Senator Muña: 

Okay and then my next question is on the self-employment process. So I know employers 
have to go to hireguam.com to register themselves, do self-employed also have to go 
through that process to go to hireguam.com and register themselves? 

Ms. Cho: 

Actually, that is one of the things that has slowed down the process a little bit. Self-
employed are going to be treated as employees, therefore we don't need them to 
register as employers on hireguam.com right now. we need them to wait for the 
application process and there will be a little check mark for self-employed and then they 
will have their own specific application to fill out. 

Senator Muña: 
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I noticed on your FAQ in regards to self-employment, it says document what 
documentation they'll need. It says not all are necessary, but will be helpful if they get at 
all. I mean, is there an absolute necessary document that they have to have because you 
know getting all of these information it's not going to be an easy process, so are there 
some absolute necessary documents that they need to have? 

Ms. Cho: 

The basic thing that I can tell you is that you just need something to show that you were 
making money and then because of COVID, you're no longer making money. 

Senator Muña: 

So, basically like a 1099? 

Ms. Cho: 

Right, so on that document those are just some examples of what self-employed 
individuals could produce, but such as Mayor’s verification, bank statement, 1099, a 
letter from your biggest customer. Just something to prove that you've had an income 
and no longer do because of the virus. 

Senator Muña: 

Okay, it says business license, ledger's, contracts, invoices so any and all of those would 
be necessary or helpful. 

Ms. Cho: 

Helpful, yes. 

Senator Muña: 

Helpful, okay. Okay, Thank you. Those were my questions in regards to stuff. Now if we 
had any more questions we can always go to the website right the 
VOSemployer.guam.gov, is that correct? 

Ms. Cho: 

Well actually, for questions you- you guys can just email me directly. 
hannah.cho@dol.guam.gov. 

Senator Muña: 

Thank you again, Madam Chair. Thank you, Hannah for all the work you're doing. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you, Senator. Yeah, we're praying for your mom. Thank you. Senator Jim Moylan 
and then Senator Will Castro. 

Senator Moylan: 

Thank you, Madam Chair. 
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Hannah, I heard this morning the Director, Dave was on the air. It was a couple of 
programs who he was on the air with, but one of the things he was talking about for the 
online processing is that it's cloud-based. Okay, so I'm understanding- because I one of 
the reports I heard out of Hawaii is that because the amount of people that are applying 
online, they had difficulty in the system kind of froze on them, but I'm hoping to 
understand that because we're a cloud base this shouldn't be a problem and that that's a 
good thing, I just wanted to reconfirm that with you, please. Can you hear my question? 

Ms. Cho: 

I'm sorry my internet is kind of spotty right now it, but if you asked that if someone is 
applying and they get cut off will their information still be saved in the cloud? 

Senator Moylan: 

But just wondering that the amount of people, when we finally get the employee module 
up and running, I'm anticipating this influx of a great number of people applying. And I'm 
hoping this won't be a problem for the system to handle since it's supposedly a cloud-
base, would that be correct?  

Ms. Cho: 

Yes, and that is one of the things that my Director and the IT team are working on right 
now to ensure there's no glitches, that the system doesn't crash, that people don't start 
filling out their application and all of a sudden it crashes and it's all lost they have to start 
over again. So right now, all of that troubleshooting is going on to ensure that the 
application process is smooth and none of that happens. 

Senator Moylan: 

Thank you very much, Hannah and Thank you Madam Chair. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you, Senator. Thank you, Senator Moylan. Senator Castro and then Senator Mary 
Camacho Torres.  

Senator Castro: 

Thank you, Madam Chair, excuse me if we're choppy because going back to Jim's 
comment about cloud-based, so it's a little, it's a little cloudy outside so my connection is 
real bad, but in all seriousness, Madam Chair and Hannah.  

Building upon some earlier comments by my colleagues my question is would there be an 
option for employees who otherwise would have qualified for PUA, but for whom maybe 
their companies did not apply, so either the companies chose not to apply right they 
were derelict or let's say for example they didn't apply because they either didn't have 
the internal capacity to do so online. I'm talking about cottage industry-type set-ups, 
fishers perhaps, you know you have offline florists, small-time businesses that generate 
revenue that do employ people part-time. So again my question to be succinct is, is there 
an alternative way for employees who would otherwise qualify to know if their employers 
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have applied online? Like that there was a recommendation to publish that perhaps 
alphabetically somewhere so they can see or is there a side-door that they can come in 
that they can still get some kind of relief? Alright, I hope I was clear. 

Ms. Cho: 

For an employee to find out if their employer registered on hireguam, basically? 

Senator Castro: 

That would be the one part and if the employer is not listed, is there a side channel that 
they can utilize like an appeal process?  Maybe the employer never wanted to submit or 
denouncing. 

Ms. Cho: 

The employee can self-certify, so we're trying to make it as easy as possible for 
everybody to get their benefits and say, your employer left island or just didn't apply I'm 
sorry register you can self-certify and that way you won't necessarily be hindered in 
applying for your benefits. 

Senator Castro: 

Thank you so much for that. I appreciate it. Thank you if you all said it already, Thank you 
for reminding me. And also I would reinforce the recommendation to have that 
publication of businesses online so people can see. Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair. 

Ms. Cho: 

Thank you, Senator. I'll bring that up to my Director, I don't know if it's a privacy issue or 
not, but yes I'll bring it up. 

Senator Castro: 

Yeah, thank you and he knows that they're all publicly registered corporations for the 
most part, Thank you. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you, Senator Castro. Senator Mary Camacho Torres, you're recognized. 

Senator Torres: 

Thank you, I don't have a question for Hannah. I just want to emphasize as many of the 
points we're already raised by my colleagues, but I think what it's very needed right now, 
obviously, is the FAQs and as soon as DOL can provide that, I think that will aleigh a lot of 
the concerns and answer many of the questions. So we look forward to that. We know 
that you're turning it out and you know if there's anything that we can do to lend support 
to that effort you know, please just let us know as well. 

Ms. Cho: 
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Honestly, if you guys are so inclined to email me the questions that you guys get asked 
the most that would also help build a more efficient FAQ for the people to understand 
the program. So if you guys have a chance, feel free to email me the questions you guys 
get asked the most. 

Senator Torres: 

Thank you, Hannah. Noted. Thank you. 

Ms. Cho: 

Thank you so much, Senator. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you, colleagues and Thank you very much Hannah for answering our questions. 
We will proceed with the five-minute recess and then we'll come back on to have 
additional rounds of questions. I know I still have questions to ask and I appreciate my 
colleagues staying with us for these rounds of questioning. So we'll just go to a quick 5-
minute recess and then we'll come back on. Thank you. 

— The Committee recessed for 5 minutes. — 

Chairperson Lee: 

Buenas yan hafa adai and Thank you for allowing us that quick five-minute recess. We 
are back in our virtual information briefing, so I'd like to just start off with our Speaker. 
Speaker Tina Muña Barnes, if she's still on. Madam Speaker, you're recognized. 

Speaker Muña Barnes: 

Thank you, Madam Chair. I don't have any questions at this time so I'll go ahead and pass 
on this. Si yu’os ma’ase. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Vice Speaker, you're recognized. 

Vice Speaker Nelson: 

Thank you, Madam Chair. I also don't have any questions at this time. I want to thank 
DOL and everyone working to get the people assistance that they need and we look 
forward to the get the responses back, Hannah for other questions. Okay, Thank you so 
much and Thank you for all the work that you're doing. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you, Vice. I believe the Legislative Secretary had another meeting so she hopped 
off, but I will just take a moment to ask a question at this point.  

Hannah, I think we might have discussed this previously, but I just wanted to give you the 
opportunity to let the public know how will USDOL be able to assist unemployed 
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individuals who may have language barriers to accurately complete their applications? 
Will there be employees hired that maybe speak languages other than English and to 
help with other culturally competent services as folks go through this process?  

Ms. Cho: 

Just like all of our other programs we are very culturally sensitive and we do ensure that 
language barriers are taken care of and that we are able to communicate. So this 
program will be the same way. Yes, we'll have people that will be able to help.  

When I was answering the 311 calls there were some calls I had to speak Korean to some 
of the people that were calling, so that worked out. So yes.  

Chairperson Lee: 

Alright. Gamsahamnida.  Senator Kelly Marsh (Taitano), you are recognized. 

Senator Marsh (Taitano): 

Si yu’os ma’ase, Madam Chair. So I- again forgive me if there was information shared, but 
I just want to make sure that it's clear for myself and for everybody listening, when you 
mentioned with the program and you had mentioned from April to July because it took 
so long to get approval from the Federal Government and of course it takes a while to set 
up a very complex program and they won't be applying or getting their checks until May. 
Will they be able to recognize if it applied to them in April? Will they get that retroactive 
amount of money for April? 

Ms. Cho: 

Yes, both programs are retroactive. In the initial application process, it will have a space 
for you to fill in how many weeks you were furloughed or when your wages were cut and 
people will have- the claimants will have to apply weekly. We don't know if they got their 
job back or if they found a new job etc., but yes there will be a slot for them to input all 
of that information and it is retroactive. 

Senator Marsh (Taitano): 

Si yu’os ma’ase and I must apologize, my power was out for a little while so I may have 
gone blank for a little while and then actually I'm some flooding going on in my kitchen, 
so I've popped in and out some of the time. So I guess that's virtual meetings versus in 
house meetings, but Thank you for your cooperation. Will we have an opportunity to ask 
one more question? 

Chairperson Lee: 

Sure, yeah in the next round. Senator “Pedo” Terlaje, you're recognized. 

Senator Terlaje: 

Thank you, Madam Chair, at this point in time I don't have any questions. Thank you very 
much.  
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Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you, Senator. Senator Telo Taitague, you're recognized. 

Senator Taitague: 

Si yu’os ma’ase and Thank you again Hannah for being here. 

Just- what happens if, how do you put this, when an individual who qualifies for 
unemployment insurance, in the event that the business starts up again and they start 
hiring people back to come back to work for them, what happens then to the funding 
that they receive from this insurance? The PUA and the FPUC, does it completely stop or 
does it continue on for them?  

Ms. Cho: 

I’m sorry, Thank you for that question. It depends on how much they're making that 
week. If they're making less than $345 plus the earnings disregard of $150, so 94, if 
they’re making $494 or less and they'll still be able to avail of the PUA benefits and then if 
it's between early April and late July they'll still be able to avail of the $600 as long as they 
qualify for the PUA, but they got hired back and… 

Senator Taitague: 

That same kind of benefit even though they do get employed, but has to reach that 
certain marker. Can you include that Hannah too on your Q and A's with regard to that, 
what happens when you go back to work.  

Ms. Cho: 

Thank you, I will do so. 

Senator Taitague: 

Because we're also seeing some individuals who don’t even want to go back to work 
because it makes so much more money, being on this program. They benefit than going 
back to work and that's an issue that we might be coming up with, so a new section with 
regards to that and hopefully we'll have… 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you, Senator Telo. 

Ms. Cho: 

I will have to say that it is considered fraud if a person has offered their job back or if they 
quit their job just to collect the benefit and they do not qualify through PUA. So I will put 
that out there. That's one of the questions I got from so many employers scared that 
they're gonna lose their staff because $945 a week doesn't sound bad, but if you quit just 
to get the benefit, you don’t qualify and that’s considered fraud.  

Senator Taitague: 
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And like you said earlier, that in the event a clue what this benefit they can still work plus 
get that initial benefit to the end of the year. So that's good to know too, but it because 
since to provide that. Thank you. Thank you, Hannah. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you, Senator. Senator Louise Muña are you still on with us? If not we'll move to 
Senator Jim Moylan and then Senator Castro. 

Senator Moylan: 

Thank you, Madam Chair. So, I understand from Dave when he was on the radio program 
this morning, he mentioned the maximum somebody could make from these two 
programs is $25,000. So, I'm not sure, but is this also- how would they receive the taxable 
amount on this? Is this something they can expect W-2 form coming on out the following 
year, can you explain that, please. 

Ms. Cho: 

Yes, the unemployment benefits are taxable. I believe in the application process you can 
just have the tax withheld automatically or you yourself can choose to deal with it at the 
end of the year when you're filing your taxes, but the income is taxable. 

Senator Moylan: 

Okay, thank you very much Hannah, Thank you Madam Chair. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you, Senator. Thank you.  Senator Will Castro and then Senator Torres. 

Senator Castro: 

Thank you, Hannah. I emailed you the four questions. This would be the fourth one- the 
third one rather, and there's another one I’ll bring up if I did another turn. The question is 
more related to the process of selecting the vendor for the online applications and if you 
can't if you don't have the answer on you I'd love to hear from you via email.  

In terms of the process itself, when was the solicitation made and then is there a way we 
can get a copy of the contract because I'm sure in the contract you have the scope of 
work and some other deliverables that will give us a clearer picture in terms of a 
turnaround time. I've heard maybe a couple weeks from now the portal will be available 
and so you know maybe just working backwards, that's where I'm going with this. So the 
question is if I can get some information relative to the process of selecting the online 
vendors so if you can speak to that and if you can't I'll stand by, you know. 

Ms. Cho: 

Yes, actually the vendor that we went with was the original vendor that we used to 
create hireguam.com in our job search engine in the first place and they are a workforce 
development. They focused on workforce development and then the program that we 
used because there was there wasn't enough time to create a program from the ground 
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up, so we took the USDOL approved UIPUA program and we're tailoring it to Guam’s 
needs, picking out all of the uses because we don't have unemployment insurance, but 
this is how we were able to speed up process. The great thing about using the same 
companies, all of these modules talk to each other, so the employer module, the 
employee module so that we can have the verification process. And then when the 
pandemic dies down goes away, please forever, and the economy starts to pick back up 
again when people start people are able to start looking for work again their information 
will seamlessly transfer over to the job search site and they can look for dislocated 
worker program, apprenticeship program, jobs, a new career, any kind of training that we 
offer for them to jumpstart their lives again. So that's sort of reasoning behind what we 
did and I think helps everybody and to get this program launched as quickly as possible 
and as far as a copy of the contract, I will get that for you. 

Senator Castro: 

Awesome, Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair. Thank you, Hannah. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you, Senator. Senator Torres, you're recognized. 

Senator Torres: 

Hannah, can you please discuss whether it would be detrimental for an affected 
employee to receive the Pandemic Unemployment Assistance if the employer fails to file 
their listing of notices of separation or termination with DOL? Is it a direct impact to the 
employee with PUA if the employer fails to file the information with DOL. 

Ms. Cho: 

I'm sorry I'm not understanding your question. For the employee if the employer doesn't 
register will it be detrimental to the employee? 

Senator Torres: 

Yeah, will it- firstly would it adversely impact their application and ability to avail of 
Pandemic Unemployment Assistance? 

Ms. Cho: 

It would be great if all the employers and businesses registered, but if an employee 
whose company didn't register, they have other options to verify their work experience 
and they were let go or furloughed or displaced because of COVID. So, they'll be able to 
self-certify so we'll work with them and we'll make sure that they qualify for the benefits 
that they’ve earned.  

Senator Torres: 

I only brought it up because today we're only at 30% reporting and that's why I'm 
wondering so what if the other 70%? You know don't provide information and what does 
that mean, but Thank you for that answer. 
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Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you, Senator. Thanks again, Hannah. We'll go to our last round of questions here 
and I just want to begin by asking you, Hannah, will employees who work two jobs let's 
say one part-time and one full-time job who get furloughed from their part-time job and 
have maybe reduced hours from their full-time job, will they be eligible for PUA benefits 
and how will those eligible benefits be calculated? 

Ms. Cho: 

They could possibly qualify, it doesn't necessarily matter how many jobs you work, it 
really this does come down to your own income and if it's below $345 plus the earnings 
disregard $150 so $494, if it's $494 and below then they will qualify for at least $1 at PUA 
and then $60 for the FPUC during the month of April through July. 

Chairperson Lee: 

So just to clarify, the income cap the total of all earnings regardless of how many jobs you 
might have. 

Ms. Cho: 

Yep, yeah. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Great and Thank you. Speaker Tina Muña Barnes and then Vice Speaker Nelson. 

Speaker Muña Barnes: 

Madam Chair, can you hear me? 

Chairperson Lee: 

Yes. 

Speaker Muña Barnes: 

Si yu’os ma’ase. I do want to ask Hannah, are employees required- employers required to 
provide individual employees a notice that that their data for the employers have been 
inputted and there and are they required to create an account on the hireguam. 

Ms. Cho: 

The employer is yes required to register and unregister. Yes, create a quick account on 
hireguam.com. Usually they do a speak with their employees and inform them that they 
have registered and input their employee data however as far as the requirement goes, I 
don't- I'm not sure on that one.  

Speaker Muña Barnes: 

Yes, so do employers give employees a certification that their displays are furloughed or 
laid off so that they could utilize that as a copy when they? Because I know that some 
businesses have shared a letter saying this is so-and-so they work for me but as of March 
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20 they have been reduced hours or they have been laid off or they have been 
furloughed will still pay benefits to that effect today. Do you have that accounting I mean 
or that or that I guess that input is so that the employees can go and do the necessary 
application they need to for the different programs that are out there whether than snap 
whether it be any other grant that they're looking at applying for.  

Ms. Cho: 

Yes, actually we have been encouraging employers to please give a certified letter to 
their employees to state when they were furloughed or when they were laid off, what 
date they have their reduced hours and their contact information and get those to their 
employees because yes when the employee is able to apply having that letter will speed 
up the process for them and speed up the process for us as well. 

Speaker Muña Barnes: 

Thank you. Thank you so very much, Hannah for that and that will literally ease some of 
the concerns that a lot of the employees have who've said that you know some of the 
employees did imply there are some employers who don't want to apply for the PPP 
because they don't want to use the loan. They want to bring with the PUA... Say that 
again? 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you. 

Speaker Muña Barnes: 

Okay, Thank you. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you, Speaker. Vice Speaker, you're recognized and then Senator Marsh. 

Vice Speaker Nelson: 

Thank you, Madam Chair, I do have a question about the FPUC. So you know the PUA it's 
you know the some of the stipulations where if you exhaust it the state of territory 
exhausted the funds to be given out for unemployment benefits of the FPUC, can you 
speak a little bit about that and I'll have a follow-up question perhaps… 

Ms. Cho: 

As far as exhausting the funds, PUA is meant to not be exhausted so if our budget request 
was for nine hundred and twenty four million dollars, if we don't use all of that or if we 
need more than that the Federal Government will work with us. That's partially why 
they're giving us the money in allotments because the process of giving us the entire nine 
hundred twenty-four million and then if we don't use it all having to give it back would 
just be even more paperwork and take longer... I’m sorry, what were you asking about 
that few things? 

Vice Speaker Nelson: 

mailto:senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org


The FPUC, can you speak a little bit about the FPUC? 

Ms. Cho: 

What exactly about it? 

Vice Speaker Nelson: 

You said that the people would be given $600 from the beginning of April to July under 
this program. 

Ms. Cho: 

That's a qualifying period, however it's between it's about 13 weeks that they can get 
that extra $600 dollars and it's just the qualifying period is from the beginning of April to 
July. So if you were laid off prior to April the weeks in like not March you wouldn't qualify 
for that $600 because the program hasn't begun yet you can get laid off after July then 
the FPUC program is already over, but you would still qualify for the PUA. So that $945 
that people are talking about is not the entire- it what doesn't isn't the entire 
employment than if it it's only for that short window. 

Vice Speaker Nelson: 

Okay, so this is in addition to the Pandemic Unemployment Assistance calculation. 

Ms. Cho: 

Yes, that is correct. 

Vice Speaker Nelson: 

Okay, sorry. 

Ms. Cho: 

You have to qualify for PUA to qualify for FPUC. 

Vice Speaker Nelson: 

Okay, so you still have to validate them and that is one of our current reason why we 
would be we are having issues moving it a lot quicker than we're able to because of the 
qualifying. 

Ms. Cho: 

Well yes so that then that's already part of me online application process okay, okay. So, 
they're connected yes. Thank you, Thank you Madam Chair. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Good questions, Vice Speaker. Thank you very much. Senator Kelly Marsh (Taitano). 

Senator Marsh (Taitano): 

Si yu’os ma’ase,  Madam Chair. I wanted to ask a question and I'm not sure if it's within 
the- what we're discussing today. I've been told that there is going to be a training 
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program out of the Department of Labor so if it is within this program I think it's an 
interesting facet that people would want to hear of and if it's not I just commend the 
Department of Labor for finding additional grants and setting up some training programs 
and other programs.  

Ms. Cho: 

Thank you very much, Senator. 

Senator Marsh (Taitano): 

Yeah, so I had heard that there was a training program that might be able to 
accommodate about 200 individuals to get them to perhaps migrate to a different 
industry or a different occupation. Is that what’s in or is that completely separate? 

Ms. Cho: 

That's completely separate. I believe we're talking about our dislocated workers grant. 
That is stuff that we are still trying to work on especially now when this find them again 
some people can start looking for work again, but yes it is separate from the 
unemployment benefit. 

Senator Marsh (Taitano): 

Okay, well it's very good to know it exists and si yu’os ma’ase, Madam Chair. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you, Senator. Senator Telo Taitague, you’re recognized and then Senator Castro. 

Senator Taitague: 

Si yu’os ma’ase, Madam Chair for the opportunity and Hannah, last round, yeah, almost 
done. 

I just wanted- mine is very simple, I just wanted to verify the numbers and if you 
anticipate any more after that considering were about nine weeks into this scenario and 
so from the time of the state of emergency health emergency, if we go into PCOR3, you'll 
apply the did- can people still apply even if we come out of this state of emergency? 

Ms. Cho: 

Yes, yes even if somebody gets laid off in November since the qualifying period is through 
December 31st, even then they would be able to apply for the pandemic unemployment 
assistance. If someone gets a new job or they get rehired and then due to COVID, they 
lose that job again after that they can again apply for unemployment benefits. 

Senator Taitague: 

Okay, so this deadline does not stop. You can be laid off within this time, if they an 
employee I mean an employer opens up the business and they realize that it's just too 
difficult to keep going so they closed down so that employee can then apply still all the 
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way up to December 31st and that's correct, right? And that so far if I'm not steak and 
the numbers are 744 employers have signed up with 12,262 as of today, is this correct? 

Ms. Cho: 

Yeah, as of 3:30 this morning. So, I'm sure the numbers have gone up since then. 

Senator Taitague: 

Would you anticipate 38,800 are estimated you think that we'll be applying for this? 

Ms. Cho: 

I’m sorry the connection broke up. 

Senator Taitague: 

It’s okay, I could see fluttering too as well. 

Ms. Cho: 

You're saying as of this morning those numbers are correct however you still anticipate 
38,800 people applying for this as an estimate is that correct? That is our estimation, 
yes.  

Senator Taitague: 

Okay, well Thank you Madam Chair for the opportunity. Appreciate it. Thank you, 
Hannah. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you, Senator. I apologize, Senator... sorry... Senator Jim Moylan and then Senator 
Castro. 

Senator Moylan: 

I have no further questions. Thank you, Hannah. Thank you. Thank you, Chair. 

Ms. Cho: 

Thank you, Senator. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you, Senator Castro and then Senator Mary Camacho Torres. 

Senator Castro: 

Thank you, Madam Chair, no further questions. 

Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you. Senator Torres? 

Senator Torres: 

I'm good as well no further questions. 
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Chairperson Lee: 

Thank you, Hannah I do I mean I have several other questions, but I'll be sure to send 
them to you via email and I just again want to Thank you for hanging in there with us. 

One last question for you, what can we recommend for folks who are not eligible for the 
Pandemic Unemployment Assistance program or the FPUC? Are there any other 
unemployment programs that they might be able to apply for? I'm kind of thinking about 
small business owners who were making quite a bit of money before this that would kind 
of put them over the threshold for PUA, but still are not receiving any- I mean I'm 
thinking about people who are maybe like in the middle income bracket who have been 
really rocked by this pandemic and are making now zero. Is there anything that we can 
give to them or anything that we can encourage them to apply for if they don't qualify for 
PUA/FPUC. 

Ms. Cho: 

Well, if they making zero everything, I would believe that they would qualify, however yes 
there are a couple of other programs, but they're not USDOL programs so I can't speak 
on those, but however there are many reasons there are many ways that a person can 
qualify or relief. If you've never even worked before, but the head of the household 
passed away due to COVID and you are now the breadwinner, you qualify. So that's on 
the FAQ and it's on our website it's on our social media sites and I'm hoping everybody 
reads them and hoping that he can disseminate it even better even a whiter but um yes 
there are several reasons why a person can qualify even if somebody was offered a job 
that was that was supposed to start on March 30th, but then know that I cap and they 
even qualify even though they never started the job. 

Chairperson Lee: 

So maybe, just to clarify is income cap based on your current earnings or your past 
earnings? 

Ms. Cho: 

Oh, current. It doesn't matter how much you made before, you could have made five 
dollars a week or one hundred thousand dollars a week that doesn't have any bearing on 
whether you qualify now, it's how much you make now.  

Chairperson Lee: 

That's really helpful. Thank you so much, Hannah, so again if anybody has questions they 
can email DOL, they could also call 3-1-1, is there any other way that they can get in 
touch with Guam Department of Labor to ask these questions?  

Ms. Cho: 

Yes, 3-1-1 and email would be the best way to go. 

Chairperson Lee: 
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Okay, great. Colleagues I really want to Thank you for hanging in there with us. Thank you 
very much to Director Dell'Isola who was on with us earlier and to Ms. Hannah Cho who 
stayed on to answer all of our questions. So certainly Thank you to our partners at GDOL 
for joining us this morning for your presentation and for answering our questions there's 
certainly a long road ahead for all of us but there's still so much work that we have to do 
and so much work to be done.  

So the Governor just recently signed the FPUC agreement with USDOL and now we're 
looking at the next phase for GDOLs implementation of these Federal Unemployment 
Programs and I just want to state for the record that my office and this committee stands 
ready to help the department in any way possible.  

We will continue these informational briefings every two weeks, so as new information 
comes out we are being very transparent with the public. We encourage them to email 
our office if they have any questions or would like to present written testimony or even 
video or audio testimony, we'll be accepting those so you can email me at 
senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org or call our office 472-3455.  

Again, Si Yu’os Ma’åse’ todus hamyu pot i finatan miyu’ på’go. The Committee on Federal 
and Foreign Affairs, Telecommunications, Technology and Labor hereby concludes this 
Virtual Informational Briefing. Written testimonies, again can be submitted through email 
senatorbiscoelee@guamlegislature.org or they may be submitted via our Dropbox here 
at the Guam Congress building 163 Chalan Santo Papa here in Hagatna until the close of 
business on Wednesday, May 16th, 2020. This Virtual Informational Briefing is now 
adjourned. The time is 11:30 a.m. Un dangkolo na si yu’os ma’ase and happy belated 
Mother's Day to all the moms. Thank you, everybody. Adios. 

— The public hearing adjourned at 11:30 a.m. — 

— END — 

II. FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The Virtual Informational Briefing allowed Senators to gain a better understanding of the Guam
Department of Labor’s efforts in establishing federal unemployment programs authorized under
the CARES Act to provide relief to individuals affected by the COVID-19 pandemic.

The Committee compiled all the questions posed by Senators and created a series of Frequently
Asked Questions (FAQs). These FAQs were disseminated to the public to help increase awareness
and understanding of these federal unemployment programs, namely the Pandemic
Unemployment Assistance (PUA) and Federal Pandemic Unemployment Compensation (FPUC)
programs.

Please see the FAQs below:

Q: If someone was separated from their job, but then came back to work, would they still 
qualify for Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA)? 
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A: The main qualifier for unemployment assistance is your income.  If an employee is working 
part-time or full-time, whether they are eligible is based on the income cap for Guam. 
NOTE: The approved maximum income to qualify for PUA is below $495 per week.  This 
reflects the $345 standard allowance plus an additional $150 in “earnings disregard.” 

Q: Does the amount of money you made before the pandemic factor into the eligibility for 
PUA? 
A: The eligibility for PUA is based on an employee’s current weekly income, not their previous 
earnings.  You could’ve made $5 a week or $100,000 a week—that doesn’t have any bearing 
on whether you qualify.  Eligibility is based on how much you make now. 

Q: Will employees be able to get benefits retroactively if they lost their jobs in April? 
A: Yes.  Both PUA and Federal Pandemic Unemployment Compensation (FPUC) are 
retroactive.  During the application process, employees will be able to answer how many 
weeks they have been furloughed and when were their wages cut.  Claimants will have to 
apply weekly, because there’s the potential they got their job back or found a new job.  But 
the initial benefit will be retroactive. 
NOTE: Employee applications for PUA are not available yet. 

Q: How do self-employed individuals like gig workers show they qualify for PUA? 
A: Self-employed individuals include freelancers, gig workers, and small business owners with 
no employees—everyone from a dog walker to an event planner.  If the applicant is a 
musician that used to perform at a restaurant, and now the business is shut down so they can 
no longer perform and earn their income, that individual is directly impacted by COVID-19 
and therefore would qualify for unemployment benefits.  You will also need something to 
show that you were making money, and because of COVID-19 you’re no longer making 
money.  This can be bank statements, 1099s, invoices, contracts, a letter from your biggest 
customer—just something to prove that you had an income and you no longer do because of 
COVID-19. 

Q: Do the benefits under PUA and FPUC end for claimants when employers start re-hiring 
them? 
A: It would depend on the claimant’s weekly earnings once re-hired. If their weekly earnings 
fall below the $495 cap, they can still qualify for benefits under the PUA. If they are re-hired 
and still qualify for the PUA benefit, they are eligible for the $600 benefit under the FPUC 
program. 

Q: Will employees who work two jobs, who were furloughed from one and have reduced 
hours from the other be eligible for PUA benefits?  How will their eligible benefits be 
calculated? 
A: It doesn’t necessarily matter how many jobs you have; it really comes down to your weekly 
income. As long as a claimant’s total weekly earnings from all jobs fall below the $495 cap, 
they can qualify for benefits under the PUA program. 
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Q: The Director of GDOL has mentioned the maximum anyone can make off of PUA and FPUC 
is $25,000.  Is this income taxable? 
A: Yes, the unemployment benefits are taxable.  I believe in the application process you will 
be able to choose to deduct the taxes automatically, or you can deal with when you file your 
taxes. 

Q: Will claimants still be eligible to qualify for the PUA program in the event that the 
Governor declares that the island is in Pandemic Condition of Readiness 3 (PCOR3) or the 
public health emergency declaration is lifted? 
A: Yes. Since the qualifying period is through December 31, 2020, claimants who are to be 
laid off in November 2020 could still qualify for benefits under the PUA program. Even 
employees who were laid off, re-hired, and then lost that same job due to COVID-19 could 
still be eligible for benefits under the PUA program. 

Q: Is GDOL going to stand up a processing center for unemployment assistance? 
A: Yes, we will.  We are currently in the process of setting up a center that complies with the 
social distancing mandates.  We are also hoping to set stations up at mayors offices; that was 
a part of our budget request.  We will definitely have a center where people can call in, 
where people can come by appointment, and they can get the help that they need. 

Q: How many employees are GDOL looking to hire to staff the processing center and assist 
residents applying for unemployment benefits?  
A: We are looking at about 50 people.  GovGuam employees will be detailed, and we will also 
bring temporary employees on board to help with the workload. 

Q: How will the Department of Labor assist unemployed individuals with language barriers to 
accurately complete their applications? 
A: We will have employees available to help individuals with language barriers and will utilize 
the same protocols to achieve cultural competency as with our other employment programs. 

Q: The budget request for PUA for Guam was $924 million.  The amount announced as 
approved is $276 million.  Is this lower amount an initial deposit, or does it represent the 
total amount Guam has available for these programs? 
A: The budget request of $924 million was approved.  The lower amount is the first 
allotment.  As that draws down, Guam will get another allotment.  If we go over our 
approved budget, the funding for this program is not supposed to run out, so we will be able 
to get the money needed. 

Q: How many businesses have already registered with GDOL?  Is there an active outreach to 
employers that have not yet signed up? 
A: As of 3:30 a.m., there have been 744 employers that have registered on 
hireguam.com.  These businesses have submitted information for 12,262 affected 
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employees.  We are still pushing to get more employers to input their information.  We will 
be creating a PSA shortly to get the word out so that employers understand that this is what 
they have to do. 

Q: Do self-employed individuals need to register as businesses on hireguam.com? 
A: No, they do not.  Self-employed individuals will be treated like employees, so they do not 
need to take the extra step of first registering as employers.  When employee applications 
become available there will be an option to categorize yourself as a self-employed individual, 
and they will have a specific application to fill out. 
NOTE: Employee applications for PUA are not available yet. 

Q: When employers register on hireguam.com, do they get an acceptance letter or 
something that verifies they’re in the system? 
A: They have to be validated.  When they register, they have to upload a business license to 
ensure they are indeed a legal company.  There is a section on the website where they can 
scan that document, or email it.  After GDOL reviews what has been submitted and validates 
the business, they can proceed with inputting employee information. 

Q: Are employers required to provide employees with a notice or certification of furlough or 
reduced hours? 
A: We certainly encourage employers to provide such notices to their employees to allow for 
speedy implementation of the unemployment programs.  Employees who are having 
difficulties obtaining documents from their former employer can self-certify their eligibility. 

Q: Is there anything that employees can do to encourage their employer to sign up on 
hireguam.com? 
A: Some employees are worried that their employer won’t sign up.  They can email GDOL to 
check if their employer registered, and if not, I would be willing to call the employer.  The 
department's email address for employees in this situation is 
vosemployer@dol.guam.gov.  Employees are also able to self-certify their eligibility if they are 
having difficulties with their previous employer. 

Q: What do affected workers need to bring or input in order to complete their application? 
A; The first thing they will need to bring is an ID.  It doesn't have to be a passport; it can be a 
Guam ID, a Guam drivers license, an out of state license.  As long as it’s valid and it proves 
who you are, that’s what we need initially.  If they can, get a letter from their employer 
stating the date they were furloughed or their wages were reduced.  If they can’t the 
employee can self-certify that they qualify for the program. 
NOTE: Employee applications for PUA are not available yet. 

Q: For people who have limited access to technology like scanners, would a photo of relevant 
documents, like a layoff notice or check stub be accepted by GDOL? 
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A: Yes.  We are accepting many different forms of these documents because we know that 
some employers have left the island.  We are also allowing employees to self-certify if they 
are unable to reach their former employer.  The federal Department of Labor will also 
conduct audits to address any fraud that may occur in this program. 

Q: After residents complete the application process, how soon will they receive their 
benefits? 
A: As soon as the employee module is up and running, it is designed to be able to get money 
out right away, especially if the applicants opted for a wire transfer as opposed to a paper 
check. 

Q: What can you tell us about the selection process for the vendor of the online application? 
A: The vendor GDOL went with was the original vendor we used to create hireguam.com and 
our job search engine.  They focus on workforce development.  The great thing about using 
the same company is all of these modules talk to each other.  When the pandemic dies down 
or goes away and the economy starts to pick back up again, an employee’s information will 
seamlessly transition over to the job search site.  Now they can look for dislocated worker 
programs, apprenticeship programs, a new career, or training GDOL offers.  
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